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Chairman’s Statement

ETREHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China
Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to report that the Company
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) recorded
encouraging results for the year 2010. Despite keen
competition in the integrated circuits industry, the Group
achieved a total revenue of HK$574.6 million during
the year 2010, representing an increase of 24.8% when
comparing with the corresponding period of last year, the
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company reached
HK$59.9 million, representing an increase of 45.9% when
comparing with the corresponding period of last year.

In 2010, the Group took products innovation, market
expansion and strengthening of sales effort as its top
priority. Through the implementation of a number
of measures such as strengthening its research and
development and focusing on extending its products
application areas, the Group successfully attained steady
growth in its overall performance in 2010. In 2010,
the Group also made initial accomplishment in market
diversification and product mix adjustment. Sales of
social security card chips, telecommunications card chips,
fuel card chips and public utility card chips of the Group
has grown from 40.9% of the total revenue in 2009 to
71% of the total revenue in 2010. In 2010, the Group
maintained a high level of investment in its research and
development, reaching HK$93.9 million, representing
16.3% of its revenue.

RAZBREXFEETEEZEREARAA (AR
A EEg ([EE5g]) MAEMARRIRE
WMEBAR ([NEE]) 2010FEFEESL A
2 BEEXNETHEEZFEZ - REER2010
FEEHEBEEWRABEEASTIAE LT B
EFREIER24.8% » NA R KRB HF A
59.9B &AL REAFRHAEKA5.9% °

2010F S EBEREBIF - BATE » BILEH
ETHERESEERTENEN  BBAEEMN
AFEEA > X hEERERERSEZEE
M KINEIR2010F BEEEESIER - 2010
FAEFEEMSZ Ll  URERGERAES
HEES TP - NEB 212 RE R
REBEEROH AR EABRZERT
FR)SE & H2009F (H 4888 & 2409% LA =
20105 (HABEHE 2 71% ° 201 0F EBE KR A
BERFBEHRANKT - ZF39HEB L FI
AHI16.3% ©



The Group will continue to focus on enhancing its core
business in the integrated circuits design technology
and to stand as an industrial leader in the integrated
circuits chips design and total solution provider for
wireless communications and smart card application.
The Group will capture the market development and
further diversify and expand in the social security cards,
telecommunications cards, electronic payment cards and
wireless local area network chips market, so as to maintain
its growth.

At present, the underlying impact of the global financial
crisis still causes ripple on the global market, resulting
in different recovery pace in different markets. It is
expected that the PRC economy will continue with its
growth momentum in 2011 and provide the Group with a
favourable operating environment. The Group will continue
to leverage on the strength of its expertise in design
and research and development of integrated circuits,
strengthen its technology innovation and accumulation,
and develop more high-quality products to satisfy our
customers’ needs. In addition, with the support from our
controlling shareholder, China Electronics Corporation
Limited, the Group will diversify and extend its business
platform through various channels such as merger and
acquisition, restructuring and business cooperation, so as
to add value to the business, improve the profitability and
bring rewarding returns to our shareholders.

Mr. Tong Baoan resigned as Vice Chairman and non-
executive director of the Company due to his retirement in
July last year. Mr. Hua Longxing also resigned as executive
director of the Company due to his retirement in July last
year. On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank both of
them for their invaluable contributions over the years.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFREHRE

| am delighted to welcome Mr. Zhao Guiwu as Vice
Chairman and non-executive director of the Company
and Mr. Liu Jinping as executive director of the Company.
The new directors, both have extensive experience in the
integrated circuits industry and impressive credentials, will
no doubt extend the diversity and refresh the talent base
of the Board.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all staff
member for their contributions and efforts in the past year.
| would also like to express our most sincere gratitude to
our shareholders and business partners for their continued
co-operation and support.

Xiong Qunli
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 February 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group's continuing operations
comprised the design, research and development and
sale of integrated circuits. The Group discontinued its
manufacturing and sale of mobile handsets and other
portable electronics products business in December
2009. The analysis below represents only the continuing
operations of the Group.

The Group’s integrated circuits design business comprises
the design of integrated circuits chips and the development
of application system. Currently, our products are widely
used in smart cards such as identity cards, social security
cards, telecommunications cards and electronic payment
cards. Our products are also applied in wireless local area
networks (“WLAN") and application specific integrated
circuits. For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
has obtained 23 patents, owned 13 computer software
copyrights and registered 12 integrated circuits layout
designs.

During the year, the Group's revenue from continuing
operations was HK$574.6 million, representing an increase
of 24.8% when comparing with the corresponding period
of last year. For the year ended 31 December 2010,
sales of public utility card chips increased by 10.7 times
to HK$132.7 million, sales of social security card chips
increased by 66.8% to HK$124.8 million and sales of
fuel card chips increased by 102.9% to HK$42.3 million,
while sales of identity card chips dropped by 53% to
HK$110.3 million. Despite fierce market competition
during the year which resulted in a drop in product price,
overall gross profit margin was maintained at 37%, which
was in line with the corresponding period of last year,
through strengthening research and development for new
products, proactively extending into the smart card chips
market for social security cards, telecommunications cards
and electronic payment cards and strictly controlling costs.
Owing to the change of product mix and increase in sales
and marketing activities, selling and marketing costs for
the year were HK$32.5 million, representing an increase of
45.6% when comparing with the corresponding period of
last year.

BEEERWR DT

E 3 )

AEERFRZFESEZEBEREEXNERZ
RET - B MEEE - R2009F 128 C AEEKR
IR EHERERENHERSEELEMTFIE
BETEMZIER - UTHONMERBMAEE 27

AEEZERERRAEBREERNERZ
SRR MEREGFAE - BRIEREE Y
NER HeRER BEBEEFRERETX
NREEEEFEREE  AINEEELBREHE
WTWLAN DA SR AR SR ERER - B2
2010F 12 A3MHIEFE RSB EEREEF
2378 - EISEHZERERL13BRER T KR
Bl Rt &ERC123E -

AEBRFRIFELLE 2 EB 2 WA ABS7468
BB REFRHAER24.8% ° H{E2010%F
12A31BILFE - AREERGAFNEEER
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FHEEEIRIER66.8% 212488887 M
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BEEEWR DT

Administrative expenses decreased by 14.2% to HK$42.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2010. The
decrease was mainly attributable to an one-off relocation
expenses for moving into new office in 2009, while
other administrative expenses were effectively controlled.
Research and development costs were HK$93.9 million in
2010 (2009: HK$79 million), which represented 16.3% of
the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
17.1%). Research and development during the year was
primarily focused on the more advanced smart card and
WLAN chips products.

Government grant received decreased by 52% to
HK$18.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2010
resulted from less government subsidies for research and
development costs incurred by the Group in 2010.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company was HK$59.9
million (2009: HK$41.1 million), and the basic earnings per
share was HK3.54 cents (2009: HK2.66 cents).

The board of directors does not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010
(2009: nil).

H E2010F12A31B It FETHRAXZ T B
142%E4298 88 L NEZEARAEAR
2000 A —AMZRAERBE AR
mEMITERAIIIEHSE - 2010F 2 3%
NABEKARRBIZ IR BB (2009F : 798 &
BIT)  (REE2010F12A3MBIEEERA Z
16.3% (20094F : 17.1%) » FRFE L=
ZRIENSIHE R EWLANGFERZFE -

MR AEBEF2010F B AT R HAERAES
Z BB - B E2010F 128318 IEEE
RSB T E52% E18. 5B BB T o

HE2010F12831HIEFE - AR AIREE
A A59.98 &8 7T (2009F : 4118 8B
7o)+ MEREREF A3.548 L (20094 :
2.66781lll) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group finances its operations primarily by internal
resources and short term bank loans. At 31 December
2010, the Group had cash and cash equivalent amounted
to HK$267.3 million, 74% of which was denominated
in Renminbi, 22.3% in Hong Kong dollars and 3.7% in
United States dollars (2009: HK$397.4 million, 65.8%
of which was denominated in Renminbi, 31.8% in Hong
Kong dollars and 2.4% in United States dollars).

At 31 December 2010, the Group had short term bank
loans of HK$23.5 million, which were denominated
in Renminbi (2009: HK$22.7 million, which were
denominated in Renminbi). The bank loans were borrowed
at contracted fixed interest rate. At 31 December 2010,
committed borrowing facilities available to the Group
but not drawn amounted to HK$47 million. The Group’s
revenue are denominated in Renminbi and payments
are denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
The Group will make use of hedging contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge the risk of foreign exchange
fluctuation arising from its operations.

At 31 December 2010, the Group had net current assets
of HK$423.7 million (2009: HK$362.1 million). The overall
gearing ratio, which is calculated as the total liabilities over
total assets of the Group, was 44.9% (2009: 44.8%).

BEEERWR DT
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AEEBFEURNTERMECHBITERAEEE
IR E S - W2010F12A31H » AEBEA
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(20094 : 3974BEHB L D FIHE65.8% A A
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2010 12H318 » AEBMEHRITER S
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BEEENWR DT

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any
pledged assets (2009: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any
material capital commitments (2009: nil) for the acquisition
of fixed assets and intangible assets. The Group did not
have any material contingent liabilities at 31 December
2010 (2009: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2010, the Group had approximately 280
employees, the majority of whom were based in PRC.
Employee benefit expenses during the year were HK$80
million.

The Group recognises the importance of high calibre and
competent staff and has a strict recruitment policy and
performance appraisal scheme. Remuneration policies are
largely in line with industry practices, and are formulated
on the basis of performance and experience and will be
reviewed regularly. Bonus and other merit payments are
linked with the performance of the Group and of the
individuals as incentive to optimise performance. The
Company has in place a share option scheme, pursuant to
which share options may be granted to selected personnel
of the Group, with a view to encouraging employees to
work towards enhancing the value of the Group.

EERH

R2010F 12 A318 » AEE W ET M E E KT
(20094 : £2) o

EXEERIBEE

R2010F12A318  AEERBEBTEE
NER & EW BT EREARNEE (20094F :
M) o FA2010F12 8318 A&EE W EEME
KA AE (20094F : £#) -

BE R FHMBX

R2010F12A318 » A% B & A 4280% &
g KEMHREEARMIIE- - EFRESRHNE
Y ASOBAEABTT °

AEBETHINEFAT LEREENEE L
T iBH B RIS BR  TERBRF GRS -
B B F B EUR MR B B KBRS - ik
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The Company is committed to achieving the best
corporate governance practices by emphasising its
accountability, transparency, independence, responsibility
and fairness. The Company is dedicated to exercise
corporate governance through regular reviews of
its adopted practices with reference to the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the”CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all the code provisions
of the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2010. The following summarises the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
consists of two executive directors, two non-executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors.
The Chairman of the Board is a non-executive director, who
is responsible for leading and overseeing the functioning
of the Board and the strategic development of the Group.
The Managing Director is delegated with the authority and
responsible for managing the Group’s business, and the
implementation of the Group’s strategies in achieving the
overall business objectives. There are no financial, business,
family or other material relationships among the directors
(including the Chairman and the Managing Director).

All the directors, including the non-executive directors,
will be subject to retirement by rotation every three years
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the bye-laws
of the Company. The remuneration of the directors are
determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities
and experience, and to the prevailing market conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long term
business objectives, strategies and plans, and to monitor
and control the operating and financial performance of
the Group. The day-to-day operations and implementation
of business objectives are delegated to the Managing
Director. The management is delegated with proper
authority to carry out daily operations and duties.
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The Board has the power and is responsible for appointing
new directors to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. The Board will consider whether the candidate’s
skills, knowledge and experience meet the requirements of
the Company when considering a nomination. During the
year, all members of the Board have unanimously approved
the appointment of Mr. Zhao Guiwu as Vice Chairman of
the Board and non-executive director of the Company and
Mr. Liu Jinping as an executive director of the Company.
When considering such appointments, the Board has
applied the above mentioned criteria and procedures.

All directors have actively participated in the review and
monitoring of the Company’s business. A list of members
of the Board and their attendance record at the board
meetings held in 2010 are set out below:

Number of full board meetings held in 2010: 4

Member of the Board

EECARMEAEZIHMESTNAEGRER
FHRBREFENE -EFEEERERFHE
BEREANENT & AHEERELSNTA
REIMER - RAFERN EFEMEKRED
—HHEREHEEREEREFTGEIIELAN
REFRTEENRE T RERARRNITE
F -REERFZRIR  EFSCEMR LIS
ERRRFF

BEEYREGBR2ERTNERANAER - &
EERELEREEN20105R1THNESES
EHERENT

20105 BT 2RESEEHNE - 4X

Number of meetings attended

EEgRE HEEERRE

Non-executive directors FHTES

Xiong Qunli (Chairman) ARt (£/E) 3

Zhao Guiwu (Vice Chairman) (Note 1) HER (FFE) (KiF1) 2

Tong Baoan (Note 2) BARZ (B1722) 2

Executive directors HITES

Fan Qingwu (Managing Director) BT (B FAGACHE) 4

Liu Jinping (Note 3) 218 (Hit3) 1

Hua Longxing (Note 4) HEREE ([15t4) 2

Independent non-executive directors BYFBITES

Chan Kay Cheung PRIEE 4

Wong Po Yan =R 3

Yin Yongli FHoxF 4

Notes: W1 -

(1) Mr. Zhao Guiwu was appointed Vice Chairman of the Board (1 HEREENR2010F7H19HEEZEAREFTZE
and non-executive director on 19 July 2010. FERIFPITES -

) Mr. Tong Baoan resigned as Vice Chairman of the Board and (2) BRLZELEN2010F7AI9ABTESFERIEF
non-executive director on 19 July 2010. MIEFITES o

3) Mr. Liu Jinping was appointed an executive director on 19 (3) BB HER2010F7 B 198 EL T AHITES ©
July 2010.

@) Mr. Hua Longxing resigned as an executive director on 19 July (4) M ER2010F7 B19BBIHITES -
2010.

The biographies of the directors are set out on pages 16 to
18 of the annual report.

EEHFENFRFE16EEF18H °



THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the directors’
securities transactions. All directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
fully complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2010.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Po Yan, Mr.
Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Yin Yongli and an executive
director Mr. Fan Qingwu. Mr. Wong Po Yan is the chairman
of the remuneration committee. The terms of reference of
the remuneration committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong.

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration
committee include reviewing and recommending to the
Board the remuneration policy and the remuneration of
the directors and the senior management.

The remuneration committee held two meetings in 2010
to review the remuneration policy and the remuneration
of the directors and the senior management. All the
members of the remuneration committee attended these
two meetings.

Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year
ended 31 December 2010 and the interest of the directors
in share options are set out on pages 73 to 75 and 23 of
the annual report, respectively.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, Mr.
Wong Po Yan and Mr. Yin Yongli. The members have
extensive experience in financial matters and one of them
is a certified public accountant. The terms of reference
of the audit committee are available for inspection upon
request at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong.

The audit committee provides independent review and
supervision of financial reporting, and examines the
effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group and
ensuring the external auditors are independent and the
effectiveness of the audit process. The audit committee
examines all matters relating to the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group, auditing functions,
internal controls, risk management and financial reporting.
External auditors and the directors are invited to attend
the committee meetings as and when necessary. The audit
committee also serves as a channel of communication
between the Board and the external auditors.

The audit committee held two meetings in 2010 to review
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2009, the unaudited interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2010 and the effectiveness of the internal control practices
of the Group. The audit committee has also reviewed
the audit plan and approach of the external auditors and
monitored the progress and results of the audit regularly.
The attendance record of each member of the audit
committee at the audit committee meetings held in 2010
is set out below:

Member of the audit committee

BEREES

ERZESH-UBIIFNTES  HHIAK
HMERLE  ERIMELERFKFFEEHEK &
ZEEMREHEBEEHRAE =R Eh—
R EMEth - EREEenBESLER R
ARFPRBEENEIEMELRERH -

BEZZE SR YMBERETEL RN KE
2= WinR RSB A BPEE 2 L - PARTER
SNERZBEMRIFBLNERIEFNERE - &
CZEeRGMEBRARERAN S RA
MBROEE  BZWE  AEEE - BARE
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Number of meetings attended

EREE]ZEE HESERE
Chan Kay Cheung (Chairman) BREE (F/E) 2
Wong Po Yan FHIRM 1
Yin Yongli* FHoxFI* 2
* Certified public accountant * AL EET AT



EXTERNAL AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the fees paid
to the Company’s external auditors in respect of audit
and non-audit services provided to the Company and its
subsidiaries is set out below:
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2010

20105

HK$'000

FExT

Audit services EZARTE 1,205
Non-audit services (included tax matters, IEEZIRTE (BIEHESEE - FHE X

review and other reporting services) H A B3R ARTS ) -

1,205

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from
the auditors about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 32 to 34 of the
annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2010, the directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently
and have made prudent and reasonable judgments and
estimates and have prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis. The Board has also reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group,
including all the material controls in financial, operational
and risk management functions, and have held discussion
with the Group’s external auditors, to ensure that a sound
system is maintained and operated by the management in
compliance with the agreed procedures and standards.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xiong Qunli, aged 54, is the Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Xiong graduated from the Faculty of
Electromagnetic Engineering of Northwest Institute of
Telecommunication Engineering and holds a postgraduate
degree in Economic Administration from the Party School
of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China, and is a senior engineer at researcher level. Mr.
Xiong is the chairman of China Electronics Corporation
Limited (“CEC"), the controlling shareholder of the
Company, and was previously the director of No. 36
Research Institute of the Ministry of Information Industry
("MIl"), the vice president of China Academy of Electronics
and Information Technology of MII, and the vice president
of China Electronics Technology Group Corporation from
1995 to 2005. Mr. Xiong is also the vice president of China
Institute of Electronics, an executive committee member
of China Institute of Communications and a member of
the expert committee of the State Plan 863. Mr. Xiong
has been deeply involved in the information technology
industry and has extensive experience in strategic planning,
research and development and corporate management.
Mr. Xiong joined the Company in January 2008.

Mr. Zhao Guiwu, aged 48, is the Vice Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Zhao graduated from Tianjin University in
the PRC and holds a postgraduate degree in Inorganic
Non-metallic Materials and is a senior engineer. Mr. Zhao
is a director of the Integrated Circuit Department of CEC,
chairman of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Shanghai Huahong
Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd and Beijing Huahong IC Design
Co., Ltd and a non-executive director of Solomon Systech
(International) Limited. From 2002 to 2006, Mr. Zhao
was in charge of the Planning Division of the Department
of Corporate Planning of China Electronics Technology
Group Corporation and the deputy general manager of
CETC Deqging Huaying Electronics Co., Ltd. From 2006
to 2008, Mr. Zhao was the deputy general manager of
the Strategic Planning Department of CEC. From 2008 to
2009, Mr. Zhao was the general manager of the Planning
and Development Department of CEC. Mr. Zhao joined the
Company in July 2010.
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Mr. Fan Qingwu, aged 47, is the Managing Director of
the Company. Mr. Fan graduated from the Department
of Aircraft Engineering of Beijing Institute of Technology
and also holds a postgraduate degree in Economics from
the Renmin University of China in the PRC. From 1996
to 1999, Mr. Fan was the executive vice president of
China Securities Industry Institute. From 1999 to 2003,
he was the general manager of the Investment Banking
Department and the Asset Management Department
of CEC. Mr. Fan was also the Chief Economist of CEC.
Mr. Fan was previously a director of Shenzhen Sang Fei
Consumer Communications Company Ltd. Mr. Fan joined
the Company in September 2004.

Mr. Liu Jinping, aged 58, is an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Liu graduated from the Department of
Radio Engineering of Beijing Institute of Technology in
the PRC and is a senior engineer. Since 2003, Mr. Liu is
the general manager of China Integrated Circuit Design
Corp., Ltd (“China Huada"”), the Company’s substantial
shareholder, and the chairman of various subsidiaries of
China Huada, which include Nationz Technologies Inc.
(a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and
Beijing Huada Zhibao Electronic System Co., Ltd. From
1994 to 2002, Mr. Liu was the deputy general manager of
the SDIC Electronic Co. From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Liu was
the deputy general manager of SDIC Venture Capital Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Liu was appointed director of the Company in July
2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 64, is a senior advisor of
The Bank of East Asia, Limited, vice chairman of The Bank
of East Asia (China) Limited and chairman of Shaanxi
Fuping BEA Rural Bank Corporation. Mr. Chan was an
executive director and deputy chief executive of The Bank
of East Asia, Limited. Mr. Chan joined The Bank of East
Asia, Limited in 1965 and possesses extensive knowledge
and experience in the banking industry. Mr. Chan is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers,
a member of the Process Review Committee for the
oversight of Hong Kong Monetary Authority, a member
of the Clearing and Settlement Systems Appeals Tribunal,
a member of The China Unionpay International Advisory
Group and an international senior economic consultant of
The People’s Government of Shaanxi Province. Mr. Chan
is also an independent non-executive director of Chu
Kong Shipping Development Company Limited, Hong
Kong Food Investment Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Four Seas Food Investment Holdings Limited) and Shui
On Construction and Materials Limited. Mr. Chan was
previously an advisory committee member on the Quality
Migrant Admission Scheme of the Hong Kong Immigration
Department. Mr. Chan was appointed director of the
Company in May 1997.

EENEREEASHE

HITES
ﬁw¢i$’mﬁv$ ERBKE Bk
AL FRIB T KBRS %1&?&¢!AEK
%%@?ﬁﬁi%% R1996F £ 19994 i -
BAREETHPBEBHFESIRLERRNEE
1#1999¢i2003¢ﬁwﬂ: HE T
ﬁmﬁ&é?%ﬁ%ﬁwﬁ BAEER LIS
i Eﬁf%w;%
04

=

Ho

%EI@%@% %E
HEBEARA Ti% BRER
IIAAAT]

BIBEFRE S8 ARAMITES - BlA

%%%¢ﬁﬁ§l%%ﬁﬁ%%lﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
BIIRED - 2R LEB2003F BESEEART
ZEERRABEALRENS R EEAR L

A ([FRERZEK]) B8 - IWEEEHW%
HBAERRAD (ZRARRRINEBEZZH AR
m) A REAETEET ,ﬁﬁ@ AEZRH
HEAHBARZEER - P1994F £2002
FE - B EELERKRETAAEALE - B
20025 20034 - %IHE@JZ‘EI&EIJ%&%“
BRAABIARKIE - Bl ER2010F7H EZR
TARNANRES -

BUFYITES

BRI B K% 6455 RAERGIRITHER
FEER - RondR7T (FE) BREAQ TEE.IJ*
it ?%Eﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁf&

@%E“E%Eﬁﬂﬁ@ AT i
BABE o @EM%Si)JH)\?iEE%Eﬂﬁ
%E%ETT;.,\Eﬁazﬁﬂﬁiiuﬁiéa%ﬁ%ﬁ °E§

i
\IO%HD

w
et
IS S Y94 2 ¥ 3 01 B0 s i )

T HYHF M BR S0 TH - O

7 B I - TR HF D5 S 4 o D>

P
iy
%D
>
eall

SR Ao
JL [

X B 1T
=

] \
B2 EERRABUIFRITES - F
mi9r¢5ﬂ%§1

B
o
iy
IS
>.
if
S it
HF %
< 3
S
S
>_
NI
>.
o
o
A SH
A
D HE

17



18

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2010

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEASHE

Mr. Wong Po Yan, aged 87, is the founder of United
Oversea Enterprises Limited. Mr. Wong was the vice
chairman of the Basic Law Committee of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region under the Standing
Committee of the National People’s Congress, member
of the Drafting Committee of Basic Law of Hong Kong,
member of the Preparatory Committee of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and the chairman of the
Hong Kong Airport Authority. Mr. Wong had been a
member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council for 9 years.
Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director
of Shenzhen Investment Limited, Allied Group Limited,
FinTronics Holdings Company Limited, Sinopec Kantons
Holdings Limited, Alco Holdings Limited and Mingfa Group
(International) Company Limited. Mr. Wong was appointed
director of the Company in May 1997.

Mr. Yin Yongli, aged 71, graduated from Shandong
Finance Institute in the PRC. Mr. Yin is a Certified Public
Accountant in the PRC and has extensive experience in
auditing and financial management. From 2005 to 2008,
Mr. Yin was the chairman of Tianhua Certified Public
Accountants. He was the chairman of China Rightson
Certified Public Accountants and various audit firms in the
PRC during the period from 1999 to 2005. Before that,
Mr. Yin worked in the petrochemical industry in the PRC
for over 35 years. From 1985 to 1999, Mr. Yin held various
senior positions in the finance department of Sinopec
Corporation. Mr. Yin is the chairman of Beijing Tong Tai
Insurance Brokerage Limited, an independent supervisor of
Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical Company Limited and an
independent director of China Merchants Energy Shipping
Co., Ltd. Mr. Yin was appointed director of the Company
in September 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, aged 49, is the Company Secretary of
the Company. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting from the University of Liverpool in England. Mr.
Ng is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng has many
years of experience in auditing, finance and administration.
Mr. Ng joined the Company in November 2008.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) is the design, research and
development and sale of integrated circuits. The activities
of the principal subsidiary and associate are set out in
Notes 18 and 19 to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 35 of the annual
report.

The board of directors does not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010
(2009: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in
Note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 24 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 39 of the annual
report and Note 25 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company had no distributable reserves at 31
December 2010 as calculated under the law of Bermuda
and the Company’s bye-laws (2009: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 107 to 108 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Non-executive Directors

Xiong Qunli (Chairman)

Zhao Guiwu (Vice Chairman) (appointed on 19 July 2010)
Tong Baoan (resigned on 19 July 2010)

Executive Directors

Fan Qingwu (Managing Director)

Liu Jinping (appointed on 19 July 2010)
Hua Longxing (resigned on 19 July 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chan Kay Cheung

Wong Po Yan

Yin Yongli

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1), Mr. Xiong Qunli and
Mr. Yin Yongli shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, Mr. Xiong
Qunli and Mr. Yin Yongli offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive directors as regards
their independence to the Company, and considers them
to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2010, none of the directors nor the
chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), which were recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 20 June
2002, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) to replace the old share
option scheme. According to the Share Option Scheme,
the board of directors of the Company may grant share
options to any executive and non-executive directors of the
Company, full time employees and part-time employees
of the Group, advisors, consultants, distributors, suppliers,
agents, customers, partners, joint venture partners,
promoters and service providers to the Group. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company.
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The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme must not exceed
108,356,000 ordinary shares, representing 6.41% of the
issued share capital at the date of the annual report. The
maximum number of shares which might be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes adopted by the Company must
not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time. The total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted to each participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time. No share options were
outstanding under the old share option scheme.

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the share
option for a certain period before exercising the share
option unless otherwise determined by the board of
directors. The exercise period of a share option should be
any period determined by the board of directors but in any
event the exercise period should not later than 10 years
from the date of grant. The grantee must accept the share
option within 21 days from the date of offer by making a
non-refundable payment of HK$1 to the Company.

The exercise price of share options shall be at the discretion
of the board of directors provided that it shall be not less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on
the date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share on
the date of grant. The Share Option Scheme will remain in
force until 19 June 2012.

During the year, no share options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme.
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The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options held by the directors and the chief executive
of the Company, employees of the Group and other
participants and movements in such holdings:

hEEFEEERARAT 2010FFRK

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

TEBBEARAEENRSTTBRAE - A5H
BEREMSEEMBAARBREZFER

ZEF R B -

Share options Share options

outstanding outstanding

at 1/1/2010 Share at 31/12/2010

20105 options 720104

1A18 lapsed 12A31H

i ARITHEZ eBrRMz i RATHEZ

Category of participants SEEER B R B AR A BRE

Directors B=

Tong Baoan® BRE" 1,140,000 (1,140,000) -

Fan Qingwu (Managing Director)  SEIEMF (EFAG45HE) 1,080,000 (1,080,000) -

Hua Longxing” Esc3-ioiy 1,080,000 (1,080,000) -

Sub-total /et 3,300,000 (3,300,000) -

Employees and EERHMSEE 1,050,000 (1,050,000) -

other participants

Total st 4,350,000 (4,350,000) -

* Resigned on 19 July 2010 * MK20109F7 198 BT

These share options were all granted on 25 October
2005 under the Share Option Scheme. The share options
represented personal interest held by the grantees
as beneficial owners. Grantees of such share options
were entitled to exercise the share options at a price of
HK$1.488 per share from 1 November 2007 to 31 October
2010. All share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme have already lapsed during the year.

No share option granted under the Share Option Scheme
was exercised or cancelled during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions
with connected persons which constituted “continuing
connected transactions” under the Listing Rules. Details of
these continuing connected transactions which are subject
to the reporting and annual review requirements under the
Listing Rules are summarised as follows:

EEREROIES 2ER

R EXWBEEN  RAFERN > Anal - BEiE
P m) gl B AT a] B BB 2 B 2k R 2B /BB~ B 3
AIVEMEARREZTXREIEAZHEA
(EER EMARR) AJREEBAARRBREME
EANBE B ESmER s 5

EERERGNZHER

ARAZEFTWERARR - HERARIHE
E ] /88 2 B sk [R] 52PN /&8 & B T RT LI 0 4R 45
B AFEREAKEDAERZEMNERE
#R - BERSEEREREMEARED -

HEBERS
FARKEHEBEATETETRS  ZFX
SRBEETRAUNEBX [FHERERXS ] - ZFH
BRER 5ABT EMRAS B R NFERMN
ME - BRFFBEERN T

Amount
X
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Type of transaction XS E5 Hfat FHET
Sale of products to the CEC Group MARETFSEEKEARIHEE iyii 54,397
Em
Purchase of raw materials and modules from P EEFEEKE A RRE iyjii 347,767
the CEC Group, provision of product processing, R REAE R HEHEFEE
testing and assembling services by the CEC Group ~ B E A RIEHESRIMNTI -
R e Bl 3 B T R AR 7S
Interest received from the CEC Group R EFEBERKE AT 105

YER A B




Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC", together with
its subsidiaries, the “CEC Group”), is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of being the controlling shareholder
of the Company.

On 20 June 2008, CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd
("Huada Electronics”) entered into a business services
agreement (the “Huada Business Services Agreement”) with
CEC to set out the framework for the ongoing business
relationship between Huada Electronics and the CEC Group,
which agreement took effect from 9 September 2009, the
date of completion of the acquisition of Huada Electronics.
Pursuant to the Huada Business Services Agreement, Huada
Electronics sold products to the CEC Group and the CEC
Group supplied raw materials and modules, provided product
processing, testing and assembling and canteen services to
Huada Electronics. The Huada Business Services Agreement
and the related annual caps were approved by the
independent shareholders at the special general meeting held
on 21 July 2008, details of which are set out in the circular
dated 30 June 2008.

On 19 July 2010, the Company entered into the 2010-
2013 business services agreement (the “2010-2013 Business
Services Agreement”) with CEC in order to streamline the
continuing connected transactions between members of the
Group (including Huada Electronics) and the CEC Group. The
2010-2013 Business Services Agreement took effect from 10
September 2010 and superseded the Huada Business Services
Agreement. Pursuant to the 2010-2013 Business Services
Agreement, the CEC Group provides product processing,
testing and assembling services to the Group, while the
Group purchases raw materials and modules from the CEC
Group and sells products to the CEC Group. The 2010-
2013 Business Services Agreement and the related caps were
approved by the independent shareholders at the special
general meeting held on 10 September 2010, details of
which are set out in the circular dated 9 August 2010.

Sale of products including integrated circuit cards and smart
cards modules and chips to the CEC Group. Sale of products
for the period from 1 January 2010 to 9 September 2010
and from 10 September 2010 to 31 December 2010 were
based on the Huada Business Services Agreement and the
2010-2013 Business Services Agreement, respectively. All the
transactions were carried out on normal commercial terms
and with reference to market rates.

Raw materials and modules purchased from the CEC Group
are for the Group’s research and development of integrated
circuit cards, smart cards and chips. The CEC Group also
provides product processing, testing and assembling services
to the Group. Purchase of raw materials and modules from
the CEC Group and provision of product processing, testing
and assembling services by the CEC Group for the period
from 1 January 2010 to 9 September 2010 and from 10
September 2010 to 31 December 2010 were based on the
Huada Business Services Agreement and the 2010-2013
Business Services Agreement, respectively. All the transactions
were carried out on normal commercial terms and with
reference to market rates.

Witk -

(i)

(iii)
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On 20 June 2008, Huada Electronics entered into a
deposit services agreement (the “Huada Deposit Services
Agreement”) with China Electronics Corporation Finance
Co., Ltd ("CEC Finance"), a subsidiary of CEC, which took
effect from 9 September 2009. Pursuant to which Huada
Electronics utilised the deposit services offered by CEC
Finance. The interest rate for Huada Electronics’ deposits
with CEC Finance was the standard rates promulgated
by the People’s Bank of China for the same type of
deposits and was not less than the rates offered to Huada
Electronics by normal commercial banks in the PRC for
comparable deposits. The maximum balance of deposits
(including the interests accrued thereon) maintained by
Huada Electronics with CEC Finance should not exceed
RMB10 million on any given day and Huada Electronics’
actual balance of deposits with CEC Finance during the
period from 1 January 2010 to 9 September 2010 had not
exceeded such amount.

On 19 July 2010, the Company entered into a comprehensive
financial services agreement (the “Financial Services
Agreement”) with CEC Finance. The Financial Services
Agreement took effect from 10 September 2010 and
superseded the Huada Deposit Services Agreement.
Pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement, the
financial services provided by CEC Finance to the Group
include deposit services, financial assistance and fee- and
commission-based financial services. The Financial Services
Agreement and the related caps were approved by the
independent shareholders at the special general meeting
held on 10 September 2010, details of which are set out
in the circular dated 9 August 2010.

Pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement, the Group
utilises the deposit services provided by CEC Finance. The
interest rates for the Group’s deposits with CEC Finance
are determined by making reference to the standard
interest rates published by the People’s Bank of China for
the same type of deposits. Such interest rates will not be
less than the rates offered to the Group by other domestic
commercial banks for comparable deposits. The maximum
daily balance of deposits (together with the interests
accrued thereon) maintained by the Group with CEC
Finance shall not exceed RMB80 million and the Group’s
actual balance of deposits with CEC Finance on any given
day during the period from 10 September 2010 to 31
December 2010 had not exceeded such amount. For the
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Bl Sl — R RBE HE ([FERFRRSE
Wk l) - WE2009F9 OB BARN » it - %
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provision of financial assistance, the interest rates for the
financial assistance provided by CEC Finance to the Group
are determined by making reference to the standard
interest rates published by the People’s Bank of China for
the same type of financial assistance. Such interest rates
will not be higher than the rates offered to the Group
by other domestic commercial banks for comparable
financial assistance. The maximum amount of financial
assistance provided by CEC Finance to the Group shall not
exceed RMB80 million on any given day and no financial
assistance had ever been granted to the Group pursuant
to the Financial Services Agreement in 2010. For the
provision of fee- and commission-based financial services,
the fees and commissions for the fee- and commission-
based financial services provided by CEC Finance to the
Group are determined by reference to, and shall not be
higher than, the fees and commissions charged by other
domestic commercial banks or financial institutions for
the same type of financial services. The cap for fees and
commissions payable for the fee- and commission-based
financial services provided by CEC Finance to the Group
for the period from 10 September 2010 to 31 December
2010 is RMB2 million and no fee- and commission-based
financial service had ever been provided to the Group
pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement in 2010.

The above continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive directors of
the Company. In the opinion of the independent non-
executive directors of the Company, the above continuing
connected transactions were carried out in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms and were in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Based on the result of agreed upon procedures performed
on the above continuing connected transactions, the
auditors have confirmed that:

o these transactions had been approved by the board
of directors of the Company;

° the selected transactions were in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group;

o the selected transactions were entered into
in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

o these transactions had not exceeded their respective
caps as disclosed in previous announcements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors of the Company are considered to
have interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group:

EERNBRERB o ER

REEARBEARARER » THNARBESEH
BRFA EANEE B K R E B EA] RE B R

BF 2 E N

Nature of
director’s interest
Principal business in the entity

Name of director Name of entity of the entity EENEHER

EEHA ERERE BRCTEEK ZHERME

Xiong Qunli CEC (Note 1) Investment holdings Chairman

AREE HEIEFEE (HiET) WEERR BER

Zhao Guiwu CEC (Note 1) Investment holdings Director of the

HE R HEETFEE (AiE1) REERR Integrated Circuit

Department of CEC
FREFEESEKER
EERHEL
Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. Manufacturing of Chairman
(Note 2) integrated circuits EFER
LBRERNERAR SREREE
(Hi722)
Shanghai Huahong Integrated Design of integrated Chairman
Circuit Co., Ltd. (Note 2) circuits EFER
FEEIMENERERAT] EXEREG
(Htit2)
Beijing Huahong IC Design Design of integrated Chairman
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) circuits and system BER
IR SN ER G development
BRAT (H7t2) EXERZF R ESFAE
Liu Jinping China Integrated Circuit Investment holdings General manager
BIZF Design Corp., Ltd. (Note 2) WEERR FEECSES
PEERNEKERETEE
BRRAA] (Hat2)
Nationz Technologies Inc. Design of integrated Chairman
(Note 2) circuits EFER
Bl R M AR (A B R A A SNERER
(Hz#2)

Notes: Bt -

(1) CEC is the controlling shareholder of the Company. CEC (1) TREFEERABARRA ZZERRE - FBIET
is a state-owned nationwide electronics and information SRR ZRXUFETFTREMBRTEZZEME
technology conglomerate, and has subsidiaries or associates BECEER  ANBARSBERFHER
engaging in integrated circuits related businesses which EHAEEEB AN EEBAHEF R EE
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, RS 2 S ERAEER -
with the business of the Group.

) These companies are engaging in, or have subsidiaries or (2) HEARSKEWNBARSBEE AT AR ER
associates which are engaging in, integrated circuits related AN B E TS ok R B K B S ek T RE RS A
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either FENBRBEER -

directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.



The above mentioned competing businesses are operated
and managed by independent management and
administration. The board of directors of the Company
exercises independent judgment and is always acting for
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. Accordingly, the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
competing businesses mentioned above.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2010, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO showed that the following persons
had notified the Company that they had an interest of 5%
or more in the issued share capital of the Company:
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btz BmFEBHRBULEEREMITRAR S
BNEIE - ARREFTGITEB L HE KK
RAMERR 2 BEMNETE - Bt AKE
SURAFELENBIN ERHEFEB 2R

FERR
R2010F12A318 - BREBEZB S L BEIGENE
336IEAN R BEFEZ T EREERMAAT - T
IATEMNEARARAREFEARARREEHITH
R5%ERIA 7 ik

Number or
attributable
number of Percentage
shares held of shareholding
Name of interested party RERDEER FESEGROEE KRB
China Electronics Corporation China Electronics Corporation 812,500,000 48.03%
(BVI) Holdings Company (BVI) Holdings Company
Limited (“CEC (BVI)") Limited ([ CEC (BVI)))
China Huada (Note 1) REIEX (fi21) 393,680,000 23.27%
CEC (Notes 1 and 2) hEETFEE (Ht1k2) 1,206,180,000 71.30%
SDIC High-Tech Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 1) BE &I EBR AR (1) 393,680,000 23.27%
The State Development and Investment BXFERERR (Bat1) 393,680,000 23.27%

Corporation (Note 1)

Notes:

) The equity interest of China Integrated Circuit Design Corp.,
Ltd (“China Huada") is contributed as to 50% by CEC and as
to 50% by SDIC High-Tech Investment Co., Ltd. SDIC High-
Tech Investment Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The
State Development and Investment Corporation, which is a
state-owned investment holding company established under
the laws of the PRC. By virtue of the SFO, CEC, SDIC High-
Tech Investment Co., Ltd. and The State Development and
Investment Corporation are deemed to be interested in the
393,680,000 shares of the Company held by China Huada.

(2) CEC holds 100% interest in CEC (BVI) and is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by CEC (BVI).
The directors regard CEC, a state-owned enterprise established
under the laws of the PRC, as being the ultimate holding
company of the Group.
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All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2010, the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the
register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares and the
Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the
year ended 31 December 2010.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the aggregate
sales attributable to the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for 74.7% of the Group’s sales for the
year and sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for 23.1% of the Group’s sales for the year.
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the aggregate
purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for 85.6% of the Group’s purchases for
the year and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier accounted for 35.2% of the Group’s purchases for
the year.

CEC Group is the beneficial owner of one of the five
largest customers and three of the five largest suppliers
of the Group. Details of the transactions are set out in
the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
above.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of
the five largest customers or suppliers noted above.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of
the Company, at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group and discussed
the Group’s internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the management. The audit committee has
reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2010.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Xiong Qunli
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 February 2011
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BERKES TSR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS
COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 106, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2010, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile  (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group at 31 December 2010, and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 February 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

mERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MALEE
2010 2009
2010 20094
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FExT FHET
Continuing operations RERE %K
Revenue PN 5 574,586 460,533
Cost of sales HEK A 7 (362,099) (287,848)
Gross profit EF 212,487 172,685
Other gains — net HAablas — F5E 6 18,328 38,297
Research and development costs e M R EE AR 7 (93,935) (78,976)
Selling and marketing costs SHE N IS ER AN 7 (32,517) (22,326)
Administrative expenses TER R 7 (42,870) (49,978)
Operating profit S ie 61,493 59,702
Finance income — net BB A — EEE 10 1,633 1,293
Profit before income tax FRATS B AT ST 63,126 60,995
Income tax expense BIRETE 11 (3,185) (7,171)
Profit for the year from BESE ¥
continuing operations AEE R 59,941 53,824
Discontinued operation ERLERE XK
Loss for the year from ERIEEE 2 EB 2
discontinued operation REEEIE 12 - (15,819)
Profit for the year REEEF 59,941 38,005
Attributable to: EERN
— Shareholders of the Company — RRRIRE 13 59,941 41,072
— Non-controlling interests — FEPE I R A = (3,067)
59,941 38,005
HK cents HK cents
74l AL
Earnings per share BREF 14
From continuing and discontinued BB PR
operations 2 E%
— Basic = g$ 3.54 2.66
— Diluted — e 3.54 2.66
From continuing operations FHER & 2 15
— Basic —EK 3.54 2.32
— Diluted — g 3.54 2.32
Dividends = 15 - -
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mEZEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE2010F 128318 IEFE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B8318LLEE
2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Profit for the year REERR 59,941 38,005
Other comprehensive income for REEHMEE W
the year:
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINEBIRE &
financial statements of foreign operations e =8 8,517 (7,242)
Total comprehensive income for AEERE
the year gt bl 68,458 30,763
Attributable to: EER:
— Shareholders of the Company — KARIIKE 68,458 33,830
— Non-controlling interests — JEIEI M A - (3,067)
68,458 30,763
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20105 &5

Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

At 31 December 2010 72010412 A31H

31 December

31 December

2010 2009
2010%E12H31H 2009%12A31H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
iorz3 FET FETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 16 21,253 22,334
Intangible assets B EE 17 3,955 3,984
Deferred taxation assets IRIEFR TS B 11 20,999 12,921
Interests in an associate REEERF) 2w 19 523 741
Available-for-sale financial assets HHESREE 20 2,361 2,271
49,091 42,251
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 21 261,312 84,610
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E AU EIE 22 280,458 208,509
Cash and cash equivalents HE NIRESEEY) 23 267,285 397,420
809,055 690,539
Total assets EEHE 858,146 732,790
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable Zx2 5] IREE(G
to the Company'’s shareholders EXRR #E
Issued equity BEITHEES 24 889,171 889,171
Other reserves HiEE 25 (341,371) (346,842)
Accumulated losses Z:tE18E (75,013) (138,000)
Total equity ERERE 472,787 404,329
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 REMER IR 26 361,855 305,746
Short term bank loans RHERITE R 27 23,504 22,715
Total liabilities =RErak 385,359 328,461
Total equity and liabilities EaREEAR 858,146 732,790
Net current assets REEETE 423,696 362,078
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERASHAMES 472,787 404,329

The financial statements on pages 35 to 106 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 25 February 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Xiong Qunli R&&

Director &%

BNE3ISHEEF 1068 2 P ERRLEESTEH2011
F2R25HHERIEERZE - WH T ALRERE

=1

Fan Qingwu B4
Director Z%
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EERER

At 31 December 2010 72010512 A31H

31 December

31 December

2010 2009
2010%E12H31H 2009%12A31H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
it FET FETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE N&E 16 105 202
Investments in subsidiaries B A RHIRE 18 564,980 564,980
565,085 565,182
Current assets MEEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E A R R IE 22 784 5,651
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 23 200,464 204,914
201,248 210,565
Total assets EEHE 766,333 775,747
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves BEARRGEE
Share capital A& 24 889,171 889,171
Other reserves H A 25 61,672 64,718
Accumulated losses ESy | (189,962) (182,682)
Total equity e 760,881 771,207
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables E 5 R HE MR FIE 26 5,452 4,540
Total equity and liabilities REREEERE 766,333 775,747
Net current assets RBEESE 195,796 206,025
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERABARS 760,881 771,207

The financial statements on pages 35 to 106 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 25 February 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Xiong Qunli 8&&% 5

Director %

HNFESAEF106B 2 HBEHRREEZTGN2011
F2RA2SAPLERIRETE - W NIALTRERER

E=

Fan Qingwu B4
Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERB B

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

KRARREL

Issued Other  Accumulated Non-controlling Total

equity reserves losses Total interests equity

BREE  HbRE  ZHER At FEHMEE  BRER

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

it TEn TEn AR AR AR AL

At 1 January 2009 R2009%1A1R 728,323 (205,203) (84,045) 439,075 117,226 556,301

Total comprehensive income bR - (7,242) 1,072 33,830 (3067) 30,763

lssue of consideration shares LTHERD U 195,031 (134832) - 60,199 (60,199) -

Disposal of subsidiaries (Sang Fei (BV) ~ HEKBLA (F3EBV) 25 (34,183) 4530 - (29,653) - (29,653)

Share option lapsed BRintaE 25 - (4,095) 4,095 = = =
Dividends paid by Huada Electronics EXE TR

before acquisition LIRS - - (99,122) (99,122) (53,960) (153,082)

At 31 December 2009 R2009512431H 889,171 (346,842) (138,000) 404,329 - 404,329

At 1 January 2010 #201051A18 889,171 (346,842) (138,000) 404,329 - 404,329

Total comprehensive income 2ENREE - 8,517 59,94 68,458 - 68,458

Share option [apsed BAMERE 25 - (3,046) 3,046 = = -

At 31 December 2010 R2010512A31H 889,171 (38,311) (75,013) 472,781 - 472,781
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE2010F 128318 IEFE

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALLEE
2010 2009
20105 20094
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaE FET FET
Cash flows from operating RETH 2 RESRE
activities
Cash (used in)/ generated from & (FrA)EAE
operations Zfﬁi 28 (110,921) 226,046
Interest paid SATHLE (1,109) (32,294)
Income tax paid TP HR (16,067) (10,855)
Net cash (used in)/generated from reEs (R, Ex
operating activities ZIREFEE (128,097) 182,897
Cash flows from investing RETHZHERE
activities
Dividend received W AR 2. - 227
Interest received WCERFILE, 2,742 4,334
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  BENMEREK
equipment and intangible assets B EE (12,724) (20,658)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE - BEK&
plant and equipment ?&{%ﬁfr%ﬁ 225 7,756
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMER
(Sang Fei (BVI) (FR3EBVI) ) 18 5 (216,063)
Net cash used in investing activities SEEEFTA 2R &R (9,757) (224,404)
Cash flows from financing BMETBHCHERE
activities
Dividend paid by Huada Electronics ~ #E AT FHRUEERT
before acquisition Y2 IRE - (155,721)
Proceeds from bank loans fﬁﬂgfkﬁﬁﬁfk 22,968 1,382,533
Repayment of bank loans borrowed — {E3ZiR1TE (22,968) (1,334,408)
Net cash used in BEEBIFTA 2
financing activities e FE - (107,596)
Net decrease in cash and RERBEEZEY
cash equivalents D RANDE -] (137,854) (149,103)
Effect on foreign exchange MEREB) 2
rate changes & 7,719 (13,641)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHIZ2RE K
beginning of the year BeZEEY 397,420 560,164
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZBRER
end of the year REZEEY 23 267,285 397,420
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The
Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), which is
established in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are the design, research and
development and sale of integrated circuits.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation
(@) Compliance with HKFRS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

1. —RER

AREFEBEERARAR ([AR2A]) A—FKR
FAERESAMKY  TREREEBLCENER
EARE - ARFRODEBBHMERIMERA
A) BT o AR R A #% = BE H ik AClarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda °

ARRZEREBEBRRBISTEHETFEEEXKE
BERAR (FREFEER]D) (—KRPEARK
B (B ) R ZBE) -

ARRIREKBAR (G [ AEE]) HEBEHK
EEKER 2R MEREE -

2. EAREFHHREE

RENFEMBERERARANEESHBERET
W BRAREREAEN WERR-—BEERER
RITBE2WFE -

2.1 REBEEE
(a) 1FTB BB FEREER

AEBENGEMBRRNVKERNBTESANAE
Bz FEMGREEL ([FEHBHREER])
R - NRBUBRRERELKAERERE -

REMEBEUBEREENNGESPBRRAR
RETHRRzEFHE  EEECERAAEEN
SRR BIETINARTEEAE - HARE B
BEMBE A RREHHHREMENTIRE - FFP R
EZBENERRIGE - BN FE4THE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE2010F 128318 IEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(@) Compliance with HKFRS (Cont’d)

These consolidated financial statements have also been
prepared using the principles of merger accounting,
as prescribed in Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5
“Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations”
("HKAG 5") in accounting for the acquisition of the
64.75% equity interests of CEC Huada Electronic Design
Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”) in September 2009. Financial
statements of Huada Electronics and its subsidiaries have
been included in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group as if the acquisition of the 64.75% equity
interests of Huada Electronics had occurred at the previous
balance sheet dates presented.

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
had adopted all of the following new or revised Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and HKFRS, and
amendments and interpretations on existing HKAS and
HKFRS that are relevant to its operations and effective for
the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2010:
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible
Hedged Items
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based Payment — Group
Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
HK-Int 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
Annual Improvements  Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
Project

2. EARETTHEREE &)

2.1 REBEEHZE (&)
(a) TFEBEBHFEREER (&)

NER A B S 3R R B 7200949 A W BE64.75%
ERPEERETRAEREEAR ([EX
BT 2EZEHRBAE B 483 FH55 [H£
BiEH THEH2EHESE] FRlizaHE
ERAGRE - EARETREMB LR 2B
WMEREBSTALREBZGEEMBRE - BokE
64.75%FEREF 2 EFZCNENZICEER
BREDEAL -

(b)  #TATER - BANEETRZFE

REZE2010F12A31HIEFE » XEEEERKHM
TR EEEKEARER2010F1 1Bz €5t
M ER eI R &ET BB ER ([BH
SETEA]) REBUBREEL - HIRERB
SRR BB IEHRE LR IEF] R

Foast R BB RAR B
F275% (87]) FATEERER
o TRTA  BRAME
£395% (1£5]) — AEBH T
AR

EAMBEELN  URGHRZNK

F25% (BT) —REUREEE
PN WANE /&S
HREMERELER ©ERAH
$35% (7))
N LRy B wRH 2]
- EBERAHEERE
BIREE IR 2 E B
BERZ8R
FESERR BREUHHREERZ

232009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont’d)

The adoption of such standards did not have any
significant effect on results or financial positions of the
Group for the current year.

The Group has early adopted HKAS 24 (Revised) “Related
Party Disclosures” for the current year’s financial
statements in advance of its effective date which is 1
January 2011. The revised standard simplifies the disclosure
requirements for entities that are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by a government and
clarifies the definition of a related party.

At the date of authorisation of this consolidated financial
statements, the following new or revised HKAS and
HKFRS, amendments and interpretations on existing HKAS
and HKFRS have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation —
(Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues
(effective from 1 February 2010)
HKAS 12 Income Taxes (effective from
(Amendments) 1 January 2012)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective

from 1 January 2013)
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding

Requirement (effective from

1 January 2011)

HK(FRIC) — Int 14
(Amendment)

HK(FRIC) — Int 19  Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

(effective from 1 July 2010)

Other than the early adoption of HKAS 24 (Revised)
“Related Party Disclosures” which is effective from 1
January 2011, the Group did not early adopt any of
these new or revised HKAS and HKFRS, amendments and
interpretations on existing HKAS and HKFRS. Management
is currently assessing the financial impact of these revisions
to the Group’s financial position and performance.

2. EARETTHEREE &)

2.1 REBEEHZE (&)

(b)  FrEIER - ERIEETRZFE ()

RAZSEANT U AEERAEE 2 EE X
MBERNBREATE

REBIRABEANR201MFE1A1BRERZEFS
SEEAFE245 (BF]) [BBEALTRE] - 1B85]
1% 2 RIS T RSB IE S « 2RE S sk
TREAAEME RN E BB 2 HBEERWEF
THREALZESE -

RERTIEAGSMBHRRER  CRMER
REMZHFIREERBAGTERRBEY
BHREED WHEBB S ERRBEYH
BELEQZEFT REBWT

TR A : 53k — HfHx 2
S¥E (B2010F2 18 #E

A3

A G EA| FRiS %t
F125% (E3]) (FB2012F1 A1 B#AR)

BB BREER 28T A (F2013F1H1H
Fo5E FEAER)

5 (BB  ENREEIZREZFE
WERE (201141 A1 B L)
ZE®)— 2E
F145:(123])

5% (BB UWERTAKESRAR
wERE (FR2010F7 B 1 B#EAR)
ZE®)— #E
1958

BRIZAIERAMN2011F1 A1 BRREBZEBE:
ERNFE2457 (IBFT) [BAEANTHEE] 4N A&
B AR P EMNE ML ERI LB EED
FTERR B ARG HREER HREEASH
ERIRBBNBRELER 2B RRE - B
BRI IE Rz FE R B AKBE I Bk R &
KB E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE2010F 128318 ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation
@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies, generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

The subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
will be included in the consolidated financial statements
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal (except for acquisition of subsidiaries
under common control which are accounted for using the
principles of merger accounting), as appropriate.

Apart from the application of merger accounting on
those common control combination as disclosed in Note
2.2(c) below, the purchase method of accounting is used
to account for business combination by the Group. The
consideration transferred for an acquisition is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets. The excess of the aggregate
of consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree is less than
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

2. EARETHEREE &)

2.2 #HREHRE
(a) MELA]

B R EASERAEEZEEM BN EERR
MFEER (BREBKRENER)  —RNHE
BEEREEORE  EFEANEE RS ZH
A—EREK BRIATEIALERNBEERSE
BOGFERFEYTER

TS T P W B 2 5 RO BB 1% B K B MR AR 3
FHEEEHEERBHIE RIERME) 51
AEGREMBRR ERRZEH TRBZHEB L
ARA A HEFIERARKRERIN)

BRP 2. 2() Tt 8 KR E HI TV & HHER A & 6
SROEIN  WEEFHATIBIEARKBEEH A
MARRTTE - WIEMHERENX 5 BHMG
TEE FMELSAENBEMEITHORAT
ANRAENE - IEENHEREXNBLHE
REFFEEMNIMEEMABNAAE - WE
HEXARELRBERRER - EXBFAHT
PIBERRRNEENRAAENABERNKEA
BE RUEEERKRBRABNAAERE -
AEMNKBE 2 WBEEMS  AEEARAA
1B SR IR Bl 1M #E 21 G B BB 0 B EE R E AV
Eef - S ERUETT R FEIEHI 1L LS - R
BHE - WU TR IR R HI MR R A S 2 BT
WU FETT < EMEREWE RN AR E R
MR 8 P UL RE A] 38 B B B R B A A (B BB RS
BAEE BEENOHE - URE T 3R
ihl) 14 258 DA B 2 AT 1 W B 7 o (R (T g e 1 WX
BB H R R B2 BAE R P EE AT BB & B
FENARE  ZERERERS RS RER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(@) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s balance
sheet (Note 2.7). Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company in the Company’s income statement to the
extent of dividend received and receivable.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with shareholders of the Group.
For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference
between the fair value of consideration paid and the
Group’s share of the carrying value of net assets acquired
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(© Common control combination

Merger accounting is used to account for the acquisition
of subsidiaries under common control by the Group.

Under merger accounting, the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses
first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from the
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination.

2. EARETHEREE &)

2.2 #AKRE (&)
(a) MEBARA (&)

SEARARAZRS BB EAERR 5 W
TLASEH - REREBINT AL - HER A
ZEFBRENEEYBRRTERTEFLN
o UREREREEPIRABER 2

EAXARBIZEERBRT  WEBRARKRETIR
ARAHBRRE B R EBHESIRR (PIFE2.7) o RANKE
AEARBENIEWERELNHEES -
AT BIERENEZBBEXAL  HEARE
ARARBREWRE RERBREF AKRRE
ZWERA -

(b) HEIFEF R ETTHIR 5

AEERHEEFEFIMRRET RS R BE
SEBRRET RS o MIFEGIIMEERETTE
B XN EEZ AR EEEE RGPS
BEFECREENEZERRNERT R - MIF
ZHIMEERETORE  ERE TR ERT
FCAR

(c) HEEHTa9E G

AN B DA A GHE SR R R T 2 B
BAF -

REHEFET  BEAREGHTHAMHEE
B SEMBHRREERAHERIEKNY
BHE - BWOREHNERIKEBERRER
EHBENZES THRELKRA D -

HIZH TR - WAGNERREBHEE
FE AP A 4 » 2 £ FEEH T oA b o
R B IR K AT RAE
E%%iﬁﬁ%m&%@ﬁ%%%&$mﬁﬁ
RFHR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE2010F 128318 IEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Common control combination (Cont’d)

The consolidated income statement includes the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the
common control, whichever is shorter and regardless of
the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous balance sheet date or
when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All inter-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities or businesses are eliminated on consolidation.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders,
costs or losses incurred in combining operations of the
previously separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation
to the common control combination is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

The difference between the share capital of entities
combined and the fair value of consideration paid has
been recorded in the merger reserve in consolidated
financial statements.

2. EARETHEREE &)

2.2 #LRERE (&)
(c)  HEEH TrE 6 (&)

HEBEXRERE ARAHERIEBTRNA
REEJEMEELACHERIEBRAZE
HREHES (ABBERE) WEE MTEE
HREH THEHAZEE -

REVERRIPNLEEET  ERIEEHE
BAEBEREANZIcEERERAXHAG
TEIARIZEFIBRE (UREEAE) B %
EZ% EZ25 o

ERRAFE—MGITER - EERWA G
REBZENMERS BB EEAETERR
=

B Ok B P

‘ﬂﬂ$} ﬁ

9
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HEZEGH THEHELENZIIHUA (BREE
RIEE - EME - RHEMRTBRERMOKA - &
EREREBAHELNRAFIERE) 1N
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MEBREFEEMBHRRPOEHHERTIIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(d) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are carried in
the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets
of the associates, less any identified impairment loss. The
Group's investment in associates includes goodwill (net of
any accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition
(Note 2.6).

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income in consolidated financial statements.
When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associates.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associate. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The investments in associates are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s balance
sheet (Note 2.7). The results of associates are accounted
for in the Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividend received and receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

2.4  Foreign currency translation
@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated income statement within “finance
income/(costs) — net”. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated income
statement within “other gains/(losses) — net”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.4  Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(c) Group companies

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is partially disposed of, such
exchange differences that were recorded in other reserves
are recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years (or over the lease

term, whichever is

shorter)
— Plant and machinery 3-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years
—  Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised within “other gains/(losses) —
net” in the consolidated income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.6 Intangible assets
(@) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the
acquired business at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment loss
on goodwill is recognised in the consolidated income
statement and is not reversed in subsequent period.
Gains and losses on the disposal of a business include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to such business sold.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to the relevant cash-generating units. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the business combination in which the goodwill arose.

(b) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of four to five years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associate and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.

2.8 Financial assets
2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into three
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading purposes. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current
assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 1 year after the balance
sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade and
other receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
balance sheet (Notes 2.11 and 2.12).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.8.1 C(lassification
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 1 year of the balance sheet date,
which are classified as current assets.

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sale of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is initially recognised at fair value
and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement. However, for available-for-sale financial
assets that do not have a quoted market price, the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the
possibilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed, is stated at cost. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“other gains/(losses) — net”, in the period in which they
arise. Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
until the financial asset is disposed of or determined to
be impaired. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets is recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of “other gains/(losses) — net” when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established. Interest on
available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of “other gains/(losses) — net”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (Cont’d)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. All impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement. In
the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the financial asset is
impaired. If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in income
statement and in equity, is recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised on available-for-
sale equity instruments are not subsequently reversed. For
loans and receivables, impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised. Impairment testing of
trade receivables is described in Note 2.11.

When available-for-sale securities are sold, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement.

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedging
activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognising
the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designed as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group’s
derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting
and are accounted for as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of these
derivative instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “other gains/(losses) — net”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct
labour, manufacturing cost of subcontractors, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Previously, cost of inventories is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. During the year, the Group changed
its accounting policy for inventories and cost of inventories
is determined using the weighted-average method. The
directors believe using the weighted-average method to
determine cost of inventories is more consistent with the
Group’s current business and thus results in a more relevant
presentation of the financial position of the Group, and of
its profit for the year. As the resulting financial impact of
change in accounting policy for inventories on the Group's
consolidated financial statements is immaterial, the
directors consider disclosing the financial impact of such
changes are not necessary.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in 1 year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets. Trade and other
receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
Significant financial difficulty of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the receivable’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account,
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within “administrative expenses”. When the
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other financial institutions and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of 3 months or less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or share options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.14 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Grant relating to an asset is included in non-current liabilities,
which is credited to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the related
asset. Grant relating to an expense item is deferred and
recognised as income in the consolidated income statement
over the period necessary to match with the cost that it is
intended to compensate.

2.15 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within 1 year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 1 year after the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.17 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense comprises current and deferred taxation.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred taxation is not recognised for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred taxation is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred taxation asset is realised or the
deferred taxation liability is settled.

Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.18 Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of resources will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow of resources with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.19 Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if:

(i) That person has control or joint control over
the Group;

(ii) That person has significant influence over
the Group; or

(ii)  That person is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group or of a
parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Related parties (Cont’d)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.

(ii) The entity is an associate or jointly-controlled
entity of the Group.

(i)  The entity and the Group are jointly-
controlled entities of the same third party.

(iv)  The entity or the Group is a jointly-controlled
entity of third entity and the entity or the
Group is an associate of the same third entity.

(v) The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF Scheme") for the eligible employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme, the
assets of which are held in separate trustee — administered
funds. The Group's contributions to MPF Scheme are set at
5% of employees’ salaries and are expensed as incurred.

The Group's subsidiaries operating in the PRC have to
make contribution to staff retirement scheme managed
by local government authorities in accordance with the
relevant rules and regulations. Contributions to these
schemes are charged to the income statement as and
when incurred. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions.

2. ERETHEREE &)

2.19 BEAL (8)

(b) XEBWRESRAKEEHE W

(i ZEREAEER/FE-—F=72z#

(iv) ZERBIAKEAE=) 2 HFE
HER  MzxERIXAEESZRA
—HB=TZBERT o

(v ZEBHQTBEREAZSRKL

(vi) (@) FERZBALZES
EK%%&EAI/\%EZ%
ERZBRR) 2XEE

2.20 EETF
(a) RUTEMT

AEEABEBZAEREERR Y —HAHEA
aﬁ.ﬁiumﬁai%@m ZBEE AT —
HTERBEEHRE HEERBYUEIEEES
%ﬁ KEIEAW CEEIZEFTATEAES
HE225%  WREERIIERX -

AREBEEFEEEWERRARBARED
KB ﬁEEEPI*ﬁFﬁi@HBZﬁi%F‘ﬁﬁEZH&
TORRET B - HxF RN B Z HRNE
ERFARER AEEUEERAEESE
TR — K

59



60

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZXE2010F 128318 ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.20 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(b) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(@) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected
to be settled within 1 year and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

(d) Share-based compensation

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the share options
is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the share options granted at the grant date, excluding
the impact of any non-market service and performance
vesting conditions, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share option reserve). Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of share
options that are expected to vest. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of share options
that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, and a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium. When the share options are cancelled during the
vesting period or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.21 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not provided for as a provision but
is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow of resources
occurs so that the outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts. Revenue is
recognised when the goods are delivered to customers, the
customers have accepted the goods or the product quality
inspection time period has lapsed and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and
the interest rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.23 Operating leases

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.24 Research and development cost

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and
testing of identifiable and unique software products are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria
are met:

- it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

- there is an ability to use or sell the software
product;

- it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development of the software product
are available; and

- the expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
software product cost includes employee costs for software
development and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. Costs associated with maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred.

Other development costs that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised using straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, which does not exceed five years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.25 Dividend distribution

Final dividends proposed by the board of directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained earnings
within the equity section of the balance sheet, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in an annual
general meeting. When these dividends have been
declared by the board of directors and approved by the
shareholders, they are recognised as a liability.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

@) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occurred due
to the fact that the Group had some business activities
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group's business
activities are primarily exposed to foreign exchange risk
in respect of Renminbi (“RMB") against Hong Kong
dollar (“HK dollar”) and RMB against United States
dollar (“US dollar”) . Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency. In additions, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

To manage its foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge anticipated cash flows in major
foreign currencies.

2. ERETHEREE &)

2.25 REDIK

SRRz ARARENEEAGBRER
MONGERRELENNEFOE - EERY
REERRNBRBEFASHERIL - BUF
BREEHEFSERNMERIE  BIERLSE

g o

3. HXERREE
3.1 EBEEREREE

=z

$$IZ%&*§E@J7¥<§1 B[R 87 75 B ’>7\
EERR - RBECREBRERESR

)Sz@ft@ﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁﬁ - BEEEHZFTRARE ?%”

BREER - BRERBS AR REVEE fE i °

(a) SIMNEJEfZ

AEBEASIMNERR 2 RARANEB 2ETE
BEBUIIMNEGEE - AEB 2 XBE T 2HEEE®
AREABTIRMAREAXTEREFHEL 2
SMNERRR o SMNERBRERARREER S R EHER
ZEENBENABEERNEGSEAINZ A
ERSTEMEL - B ARBLBRINERE
ST AR BB AR 2 SNE B BIEAR ©

RTEERBRREERIRERRCEER
BEZIERRE  AEEREBERFAEHEL
HmEBINERTFEHIIR SR E o

63



64

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZXE2010F 128318 ILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
@) Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against HK
dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2010 would have been
HK$5,879,000 higher/lower (2009: HK$4,038,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains or
losses on translation of RMB denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against US
dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2010 would have been
HK$414,000 lower/higher (2009: HK$448,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains or
losses on translation of US dollar denominated cash and
cash equivalents.

As less than 10% of the Group’s foreign currency
transactions are denominated in other foreign currencies,
the directors are of the view that foreign exchange risk
in relation to transactions denominated in other foreign
currencies is low. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis for these
currencies is presented.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Other than deposits held in banks and other financial
institutions, the Group does not have significant interest-
bearing assets. The average rate on deposits held in banks
and other financial institutions at 31 December 2010
was approximately 1.07% per annum (2009: 0.92%).
Any change in the interest rate from time to time is not
considered to have significant impact to the Group’s
performance.

The Group’s interest rate risk which affects its results and
operating cash flows mainly arises from bank borrowings.
The bank borrowings were at fixed rates and expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. As all the Group’s
bank borrowings were short term loans and any change
in the interest rate from time to time is not considered to
have significant impact to the Group’s performance.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(c) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, bank
deposits and trade and other receivables. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is their
carrying value. The Group has policies and procedures
in place to ensure they are made to counterparties with
acceptable credit quality.

All the Group's deposits with bank and other financial
institution are placed in high quality financial institutions
without significant exposure to credit risk.

For trade and other receivables, the credit quality of
the counterparties is assessed by taking into account
their financial position, credit history and other factors.
Individual credit limits are set based on the assessment of
the credit quality. Given the constant repayment history,
the directors are of the opinion that the risk of default by
these counterparties is not significant. Further disclosure
on credit risk are set out in Note 22.

(d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, including maintaining
sufficient working capital, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed borrowing
facilities and the ability to close out market positions is
adopted. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
ensuring sufficient committed borrowing facilities are
available.
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RESLEMEBKRENS  XZEFZEER
BRBEEREMBAR  EECHELREME
=MELFE - EREERBRRBRESE R
mMmEIE - BERREZERRLE  EFRRZ
EXGHFHRFBZEBRIEIK - BRAEE
B 2 A — R BN 22

d) RBELER

$’$lﬁé BREZRDECRRER  BFEE
BRFBEHZEES RO ZCEREERR

%éiMTmLJEE‘tTLEbFHﬁi&FE@m%—]$)§2
N - ARMEEEBBREFN  NEEEE
BREHAIHBBZOAHEERBE  #EI
HBESHEBZERN -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(d) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
by maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are based on the
contractual undiscounted cash flows and are as follows:

3. HXERER &)

3.1 H¥ERREZE (&)
(d) mEEERE (&)

TRERAKEBGEE 2B E  WHRR
HESHER  REHEEEEANIIHBEZ
RIAHRETON - RRPEREBEZSBERRE
BRZABRBEREFTE - 0T

31 December 31 December

2010 2009
Within 1 year —FR 2010128318 20094 12AH31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHT

Group rEE
Short term bank loans RERITE R 24,637 24,932
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR RIA 283,515 237,781
308,152 262,713

Company PN
Trade and other payables 2 5 R E M FRIE 2,402 1,285

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which includes bank borrowings, and equity attributable
to shareholders of the Company, which comprises issued
equity and reserves.

The Group monitors capital risk using a gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown
in the consolidated balance sheets, plus net debt.

The Group strategy is to maintain an operation with
minimal capital risk. As at 31 December 2010, the Group'’s
cash and cash equivalents exceeded its borrowings by
HK$243,781,000 (2009: HK$374,705,000). The directors
are of the opinion that the Group’s capital risk is low.

3.2 EXREREE

AEEETEAEEMNBN  EERERAKE
ZERBRAIRKELE  WEBEBLEKRER
BHRABAREATREAL R - NEBEERE
RESRIFELARTFE — 2 -

AEEZ EAFEBRIEES (BRRITEE)
RARPIBRREGEEZ (BREETER L
) e

AEBHRAEAGBERERERNRAR ° thit
ENDABRFREGRNERNERETE - EFF5E
REERERE SRR EEMTE - EXE
BIRGSEEABRAMII R ZERINER F8
AEBZRBRERFBUREZELRRKR EE -
R2010F12A318 ' A&EB 2R kR FH
8 ¥ 8 i@ & §243,781,0005% JT (20094 :
374,705,000 70) - EERAAEBEEEH &
NEBREM -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets
are determined by using generally accepted valuation
techniques. The carrying value less impairment provision of
trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair values of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

(a) Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether non-financial assets,
mainly property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets have suffered any impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.7. Management
judgment is required, particularly in assessing whether:
(1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2)
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net
present value of future cash flows from the asset using
estimated cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flow
is discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the
level of impairment (if any), including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could significantly affect the Group’s reported financial
condition and results of operations. In performing the
impairment assessment, the Group has also considered
the impact of the current economic environment on the
operations of the Group.

(b) Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in different
jurisdictions. Estimation and judgment is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income tax.
There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such differences will impact on the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

3. HXERER &)

3.3 AnEfE

BARERBEIIE SRABRTALES
RAE AR EDARREENSEE - B
R 0B & 4 OB 2 AR R AL (L
EREAAEEE - FAREAMME - 2
8182 DA EZEHDEARAORE FELL
SRETEOBUSHIA AR BN
R -

4. FEGTHET R A

(a) fHEHFEERMEERE

AEBERBEWNF2 7B 2 ST BRMUIFERE
E(X2EEVE BEMRBRELEE) 2
SAELBABEETFREAR SEEREFED
HE - BRI (WARRERRTEERE
BENEMF: QBEEZRAERSAEAKRR
MERBREFE UARSREBVRETE) XH
ERREMERCTREEMBA RN - §1F
ERANBERERENRE (BREELESR
EFRARRRMBBERNERE) maNE -
A BE KRR & N S B 2 R0 B A5 AR A48 2 2

Ag o ETTRERER - AEBITREEE K

BREHUAEERE 2FE -

(b) FEHRRIELERIE

AEBEARTRBLARRBAAER - REE
PRISTHIAR B 2 28K - FIEL MG LA -
RABERBBRTEER S Kt EHEAREE
HRERIZMBETE ° Mk FEFH I RETRBE
REFNNENERCTH  ZSZAKHETE
MRz ISR MEERARBELRE -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Income tax and deferred taxation (Cont’d)

In accordance with the enterprise income tax laws in
the PRC, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the
dividend declared by the companies established in the PRC
to their foreign investors starting from 1 January 2008.
No deferred taxation liability has been provided by the
Group for the earnings of approximately HK$140,000,000
(2009: HK$69,000,000) expected to be retained by the
subsidiaries in the PRC and not to be remitted out of the

PRC in the foreseeable future.

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

4. FESEHETTRAER &)

(b) FBEHRELEHRE (&)

Br0% iR 1T - A % B 2
ﬁ%%@ﬁ%%ﬂ$ RAREATS

O BB
o EE-Hom it S
3

(@)
o
o
o
<
o
dl
BN
B
=
%
Eﬁ

5. WARTHEHR

(a) Revenue (a) WA
Year ended 31 December
B Z12A31HLEE
2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT FHET
Continuing operations BERE £
Integrated circuits products SXERER 574,586 460,533
Discontinued operation DRIERE 2K
“Philips" mobile handsets Philips % 8 & 5% = 1,113,972
Own-branded and other OEM/ODM/EMS BAmiE N EA
mobile handsets OEM/ODM/EMSH &) & - 398,397
Multi-media players EZES LG - 446,903
- 1,959,272
(b) Operating segments (b) EESI
Management has determined the operating segments ERECREES (XRLERRE) DBHIE
based on the reports reviewed by the directors (the AEEEXRRERSDEERANRE  BELE
chief operating decision maker) that are used to assess DER o
performance and allocate resources.
The directors consider that the Group’s continuing EERRAEECRHERE 2 XBUE— 7
operations are operated and managed as a single segment, LENEE, WEBEEFECEZEHR I DEHE
accordingly no segment information is presented for the o
continuing operations.
For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group's HE2009F12A31HILFE - Nilzai@t
discontinued operation had three reportable operating BEHEBE=RZ2WMEEDEL : Philipsin h&
segments: “Philips” mobile handsets, own-branded and BHELE - 8 A mhé&HOEM/ODM/EMSHE
other OEM/ODM/EMS mobile handsets and multi-media EERLERBERE BEERESHEE
players. Management assessed the performance of the AHEEED BRI - TARWA &1@ B8 R B A
operating segments based on segment results, which KBRS E - Db AM 2z S MR H
was measured by revenues and related material costs and FEELEREERIERE S DB -

contributable expenses. Segment information was reported
in a manner consistent with that provided to the chief

operating decision maker for decision making.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. WARZSHEHR (&)
INFORMATION (Contd)

(b) Operating segments (Cont’d) (b) B (&)

As the discontinued operation had been disposed in AR BRI E 2 EKER2009F12AHE -

December 2009, segment results and reconciliation to loss HEZEHZE2009F12 A31HIEFEB K IEK

from discontinued operation are only presented for the I s DRI SEEEEE 2 HEET

year ended 31 December 2009 and as follows:

Own-branded
and other OEM/
ODM/EMS
mobile handsets
“Philips” mobile ~ BEmEREA Multi-media

handsets  OEM/ODM/EMS players Total
Philips MIEB B E BHEF SRR R &
Year ended 31 December
BE12ANALEE
2009 2009 2009 2009
20094 20094 20094 20095
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT T TET TET
Revenue WA 1,113,972 398,397 446,903 1,959,272
Segment (loss)/profit D (E518) /% F (2,266) 10,931 6,308 14,973
Other gains - net Hitlzs — 58 5,936
Unallocated costs RO (99,678)
Finance costs — net BERAK — B (29,253)
Loss before income tax B BrS R AIE R (108,022)
The revenues by location are as follows: miERSE WA -
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLELEE
2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Continuing operations BEREIER
Mainland China B KR 574,586 460,533
Discontinued operation RIS 2K
Mainland China B KR - 811,294
Hong Kong %.5/% - 672,882
Europe BOM - 395,432
Asia excluding Mainland China and EE?J‘\‘I (B
Hong Kong oK RE R B E) - 43,956
North America 1b3EM - 35,708

= 1,959,272
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(b) Operating segments (Cont’d)

5. WARZHESR (&)

(b) BESH (&)

Total non-current assets by location are as follows: BMESEZIERBEELENT -
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
20105128318 2009F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Mainland China A 5 A fie 27,982 29,112
Hong Kong B 110 218
28,092 29,330
Deferred taxation assets BRI EE 20,999 12,921

Total non-current assets per RiFEEEREBERZ

consolidated balance sheet EMENEEBRR 49,091 42,251

6. OTHER GAINS - NET

6. Hfttls — FH

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LFE
2010 2009
20105 20094
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Government grants AT 18,519 38,563
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate DEEEE AR (B18), &= (227) 246
Others Hi 36 (512)
18,328 38,297
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7. EXPENSES BY NATURE 7. RHMEESZEHA

Expenses included in cost of sales, research and FIVESHER A « A RAERA - HERTIS
development costs, selling and marketing costs and HERNARITHRAZ BRI THAT
administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31ALEE
2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Depreciation and amortisation expenses ENEEER
(Notes 16 and 17) (Btat16%17) 14,414 5,034
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EEBFRZ (HiE8) 79,993 78,871
Changes in inventories of finished goods &K G R FE R G
and work in progress FEEE) (184,918) 31,636
Raw materials and consumables used BT AR R AR S B #E 536,289 252,119
Impairment provision for receivables W TRIR 2 BB B
(Note 22) (H1a£22) 1,476 1,618
Write-down of inventories to WoRTF & = 0] 2155 E
net realisable value (Note 21) (Hia£21) 8,216 1,808
Operating lease expenses on property Y2 &ERES 6,454 3,274

Auditor’s remuneration 2 GRS 1,205 2,157
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8. EERAMAX
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALFE
2010 2009
20105 2009%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He o FEBLREYRET 72,058 71,916
Contributions to retirement schemes BIRGHEIER
(Notes (a) and (b)) (K17 (@)% b)) 7,935 6,955
79,993 78,871

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for the eligible
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions
to MPF Scheme are set at 5% of employees’ salaries
and are expensed as incurred.

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries participate in
defined contribution retirement scheme based
on laws and regulations in the PRC. The local
government authority of the PRC is responsible for
the pension liabilities to these retired employees in
the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries made contributions
to the retirement scheme in the PRC and are
expensed as incurred.

AEBSEELAERREERILRER
A8l e AEBEYHRBELA I ZEHARE
BHE25%  URELRIIMERXZ

ARRBER B 2 KB R R RIEF BES
K G2 R EREFORARGTE - FEE
WHAKBAEZEFTEERRER 2R
RE B - ZEHEME QR RING
SEHHAANELERIIERX
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE'’S 9. EEKEEME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM&
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 BEBEERHZE2010512A31BIEFEZEH
December 2010 is set out below: FEATR
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions
Name of Director Fees ¥H& - EHR EBIKEFTE Total
EEHA e BEYERN = a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FH&T FH&xT FERT FERT
Xiong Qunli REEE N 660 - - 660
Zhao Guiwu* HER 100 - - 100
Tong Baoan** BARZ ** 275 - - 275
Fan Qingwu BT - 520 62 582
Liu Jinping* = 100 - - 100
Hua Longxing** R x* 100 - - 100
Chan Kay Cheung PR E & 200 - - 200
Wong Po Yan |IRMK 200 - - 200
Yin Yongli FoKF] 200 = = 200
1,835 520 62 2,417
* Appointed on 19 July 2010. @ 2010675198 EE (T -
*% Resigned on 19 July 2010. e R2010%F7 198 BHE ©
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group FA - AKBVERAARAESZNEANME

to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join ERMBAEEFIMNBER 2 REHIERRBE T2
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of HE -  FANMEARARRIZESHEIMAME -
office. None of the directors of the Company had waived

any emoluments during the year.
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’'S 9. EEREEMME (&)

EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d)

(a) ES=M=E (&)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 BEENEHZE2009F12A31HBILFEZEEH
December 2009 is set out below: T
Salaries,

allowances Pension

and benefits scheme

in kind  contributions
Name of Director Fees ¥ MK RIK&5E] Total
BEHA we BEYEF| HEK a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T T
Xiong Qunli RERE ) 660 = = 660
Tong Baoan BRARZ 550 - - 550
Fan Qingwu SBIEA = 520 60 580
Hua Longxing =R - 311 - 311
Chan Kay Cheung PRIL S 200 - - 200
Wong Po Yan =R 200 = = 200
Yin Yongli Fox A 200 = = 200
1,810 831 60 2,701

(b)  Five highest paid individuals

(b) EEBSHFMAL

The emoluments payable to the five individuals whose FAENTASRESFMES cER AT ZHE
paid were the highest in the Group during the year are as LU

follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A3MALLEE
2010 2009
20105 20094
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH&TT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R NEYER 4,453 4,044
Bonuses 1E4T 2,338 3,031
Contributions to retirement schemes RRETEIHE R 175 161
6,966 7,236




hEEFEEERARAT 2010FFRK

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE'S 9. EEKEEME &)
EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Cont'd) (b) EEESHFMAL (&)

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals do not &&= A T I8 (20095 : &) KNAQFA]

include any (2009: nil) director of the Company and their EEMESIMENFTUTEHE :
emoluments were fell within the following band:

Number of individuals

A
2010 2009
20104 20094F
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 = — 1,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T — 1,500,0007% 7T 3 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T 1 2
5 5
10. FINANCE INCOME - NET 10. BEWA — FH
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MALLEE
2010 2009
20104 20094F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Interest income on short term deposits SEEEE G SN ON 2,742 3,568
Interest on bank loans SRITEZH S (1,109) (2,275)
1,633 1,293
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11. TAXATION 11. H1E
Income tax expense Fr8Hi X%
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A318LEE
2010 2009
2010 20094
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Current taxation RNEFEHIA
— PRC enterprise income tax — R ERTEH 10,639 9,723
Deferred taxation RIET IR (7,454) (2,552)
3,185 7,171
(a)  No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been (a) BERFAEERAFEARBALEES
made as the Group did not generate any assessable R AN - R EAEBEFEH
profit in Hong Kong during the year (2009: nil). E M (20094 « &) -
(b) In accordance with the enterprise income tax laws (b) WEPBHECEMEGHE EXBETFH

in the PRC, Huada Electronics’ applicable statutory
tax rate is 25% from 1 January 2008. However,
Huada Electronics qualified as a “High/New
Technology Enterprise” and thus was granted a
15% preferential tax rate from 1 January 2008.

2008F1ATBE B Z2ERAEEME R
25% ° AT EREREFHEER (=
FRHE | - Btk E2008F1 A1 HBEE
ABFEXZI5%ZBEME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

TAXATION (Cont'd)

Income tax expense (Cont’d)

(c)

Reconciliation between the taxation on the Group’s
profit before income tax and the theoretical taxation
that would arise using the respective applicable

statutory tax rates are as follows:

1. BIE (&)
FrEBiRx (&)
() AKERMEHAGFN 2 HERMEE

EEERECREMFAEZCERMRIELZ
HERIOT -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31ALFEE
2010 2009
2010 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Profit before income tax B PT1S 5 Al i ) 63,126 60,995
Calculated at respective applicable BEBBEBEERRK
statutory tax rates HE2RE 16,660 16,209
Effect of tax concession THIBER R & (7,383) (4,781)
Research and development 7% K A 2
costs additional deductions PR ANERINRR (8,233) (9,872)
Expenses not deductible for NRIH0ER
taxation purposes A 344 3,430
Tax losses for which no deferred taxation W EREREETRIBEEE 2
asset was recognised (Note (d)) THIAEIE (M1aE(d) 1,797 2,185
Income tax expense FriSiif s 3,185 7,171
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11. TAXATION (Cont'd)

Income tax expense (Cont’d)

(d) Deferred taxation

The movement in the deferred taxation assets during the
year is as follows:

11.

(d)

B (#)
Friewimx (&)

IEFE R IR

EREERAEEY BHMT -

Impairment Other
of accruals  Government
inventories Hetr grant  Tax losses Others Total
RERE ERER BRHB BEER Httr B3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT AT TAT TBT FAT AL
At 1 January 2009 R2009£1581H 232 2,658 1,222 49,238 238 59,588
Exchange differences EHER - 7 11 93 1 112
(Charged)/Credited to the GINVE::

income statement Wgn sk 39 2,324 (256) 15,043 445 17,595
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR = = = (64,374) - (64,374)
At 31 December 2009 R2009%12831H 271 4,989 6,977 - 684 12,921
At 1 January 2010 201051818 271 4,989 6,977 - 684 12,921
Exchange differences EHER 38 210 333 - 43 624
Credited to the income statement K& UiaEk 1,195 1,556 3,891 - 812 7,454
At 31 December 2010 R2010£12831H 1,504 6,755 11,201 - 1,539 20,999
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

11. TAXATION (Cont'd)

Income tax expense (Cont’d)

(d) Deferred taxation (Cont’d)

The amounts shown in the balance sheet include the
following:

1. BIE (&)
FrEBifx (&)
(d) EZEHRER (&)

REERBRINRZSBEEATNER :

31 December 31 December

2010 2009
2010%E12H31H 2009412 A31H
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET TFHETT
Deferred taxation assets to be 1B 218 B & U B 2 IR iE
recovered after more than 12 months MIBEE 730 504
Deferred taxation assets to be #1248 B AW E 2z &
recovered within 12 months MIEEE 20,269 12,417
20,999 12,921

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax loss
carrying-forwards to the extent that the realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred
taxation assets of HK$1,797,000 (2009: HK$2,185,000)
in respect of losses amounting to HK$10,701,000 (2009:
HK$13,270,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income.

RERIBEELEE 2 HIBBEmMEER
HELAE AR B BARR Z EFB m M RGN
A2 AR o 785 B I oK 5t 7] 45 8 DA 85 K 2Rk
JiE &% Bt @ A 2 E54810,701,0007%8 T (20094 :
13,270,000/ 70) HERIRLER IEE E1,797,000
77T (20094 : 2,185,000/ 7T) °
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The Company completed the disposal of its manufacturing
and sale of mobile handsets and other portable electronics
products business at a cash consideration of HK$10 million

on 29 December 2009 to a subsidiary of CEC.

The results and cash flows of the discontinued operation
for the year ended 31 December 2009 (up to the date of

12. CRIEBEZXK

M2009F12 A29H * AR RIE KRR HE
10EBETHERERENEEREA NEM
FRETFTEMESTHRETFEBEZHEAR °

HZE2009F12A831BILFEE (E2HEBH)
ERIEGEZEB 2 EERBSREFBN

disposal) are as follows: N
Year ended
31 December
2009
HE
2009412 A31H
IFFE
HK$'000
T
Loss for the year from discontinued operation ERIERE X ZAFEBR
Revenue A 1,959,272
Costs and expenses B AR 7 (2,043,977)
(84,705)
Other gains — net Efth i es— 558 5,936
Finance costs — net BB P A F EE (29,253)
Loss before income tax MR ETS R RIS 18 (108,022)
Income tax credit TS 15,043
Loss for the year REEEE (92,979)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation (Note 18)  HHEBRIHEE 2 ¥z Wz (M1aE18) 77,160
Loss for the year from discontinued operation ERIEEE 2 ¥ RFEEHE (15,819)
Attributable to: E2EEIA ¢
— Shareholders of the Company o VNET S 5,283
- Non-controlling interests — JEPEHI MR A (21,102)
(15,819)
Cash flows from discontinued operation ERIERECERCRESRE
Net cash generated from operating activities K EBEA RS FE 73,117
Net cash used in investing activities REEBAMA A ST (40,005)
Net cash generated from financing activities BEEBEA RS IFE 70,767
Net cash flows FIRER=E 103,879
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 included
a loss of HK$10,326,000 (2009: HK$5,291,000) which has
been dealt with in the separate financial statements of the

Company.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

is based on the following data:

13. AEIRRELEE

HZE2010F12A31BILEFE » R AR R EGER
BHRFBEEFTARNRRBILYBHRERZERA
10,326,000/ 7T (20094F : 5,291,000/ 7T) °

14. BRER
FIREAREERN RS T 8EE -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEFE
2010 2009
20104 20094F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Continuing operations BERE %K
Profit for the year from continuing RABIRRERIEE
operations attributable to FELE 2
shareholders of the Company %2 FEmA 59,941 35,789
Weighted average number of ordinary AT EBIRER
shares for the purposes of basic and NEESERF) 2 L@k
diluted earnings per share kT8 1,691,560,000 1,544,178,301
Basic/diluted earnings per share BRER S EERF
(HK cents) GBIl 3.54 2.32
Discontinued operation ERIERE ZEK
Profit for the year from RARIREIENG
discontinued operation attributable BRI ERE
to shareholders of the Company EB 2 FEmA = 5,283
Weighted average number of ordinary RN ESRER
shares for the purposes of basic and R#SE RNz BBk
diluted earnings per share IREEE 8B 1,691,560,000 1,544,178,301
Basic/diluted earnings per share BRER EERF
(HK cents) (&AL - 0.34
Continuing and discontinued BERERDRIERE
operations ZHEK
Profit for the year attributable to RREIRRERFEN
shareholders of the Company ZEEm A 59,941 41,072
Weighted average number of ordinary AT EBIRER
shares for the purposes of basic and NEESERF 2 L@k
diluted earnings per share InwEFHEE 1,691,560,000 1,544,178,301
Basic/diluted earnings per share BRER S EERF
(HK cents) GBIl 3.54 2.66

81



82

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE2010F 128318 ILFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 and 31 December
2010, impact of exercise of share options are not included
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because
their exercise would result in an increase in earnings per
share, and are anti-dilutive.

15. DIVIDENDS

The board of directors does not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010
(2009: nil).

14. ERERN (&)

A £2009F12H31H &2010%F12A31H Ik F
B BRTEBRESENERETR @ Btk
FREREEEREENE  HETESRES
BRI - WEEITEBRECTEFEREA -

15. RE

BEefEBRNEZ2010F12831B81LEE
ZAREARR B (20094 : f#) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. V¥ - - BMERRE

(@) Group (a) &£
Leasehold Plant and Motor Furniture and
improvements machinery vehicles fixtures Total
HENELE  HERMS Bl  GRREE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT TET T THT
At 1 January 2009 R200951A1H
Cost [ 37,654 369,344 9,163 51,551 467,712
Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZIHER
impairment HE (25,635) (332,508) (5,288) (36,201) (399,632)
Net book amount RHFE 12,019 36,836 3,875 15,350 68,080
Year ended 31 December 2009 #Z2009%12831H
tEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 12,019 36,836 3,875 15,350 68,080
Exchange differences fE 5 =5 15 126 3 (60) 84
Additions NE 5,760 9,977 400 997 17,134
Disposals HE - (6,001) (1,086) (305) (7,392)
Depreciation charge NERX (4,566) (14,475) (783) (7,255) (27,079)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLRR (8,699) (10,292) (856) (8,646) (28,493)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 4,529 16,171 1,553 81 22,334
At 31 December 2009 200912 A31H
Cost B 5,013 29,065 3,492 445 38,015
Accumulated depreciation ZENE (484) (12,894) (1,939) (364) (15,681)
Net book amount EEERE 4,529 16,171 1,553 81 22,334
Year ended 31 December 2010 #Z2010%128318
tEE
Opening net book amount YR FE 4,529 16,171 1,553 81 22,334
Exchange differences fE 5 =5 118 518 93 1 730
Additions NE - 3,716 2,574 50 6,340
Disposals HE - - (284) - (284)
Depreciation charge WERS (1,696) (5,593) (533) (45) (7.867)
Closing net book amount FRE@FE 2,951 14,812 3,403 87 21,253
At 31 December 2010 R2010%128318
Cost AR 5,131 33,645 5,334 492 44,602
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (2,180) (18,833) (1,931) (405) (23,349)
Net book amount REFE 2,951 14,812 3,403 87 21,253

Depreciation expense of HK$2,614,000 (2009:
HK$11,454,000) has been expensed in cost of sales,
HK$2,566,000 (2009: HK$1,079,000) in research and
development costs, HK$279,000 (2009: HK$902,000) in
selling and marketing costs and HK$2,408,000 (2009:
HK$13,644,000) in administrative expenses.

PrERM 2,614,000 7T (20094 : 11,454,000
BIr) BET ASEEK A - 2,566,000/ 7T (2009
F 11,079,000 7T) B AMERFAZEKA
279,000 7T (20094 : 902,000 7t) 25t A
HENMTHSHERKA - %2,408,000/% 7T (2009
F :13,644,00087T) EFFATTHAX ©
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Cont’d)
(a) Group (Cont’d)

Lease rental expenses amounting to HK$6,454,000 (2009:
HK$3,274,000) relating to the lease of property are

16. VM¥ -  BMERRE (&)

(a) #%ME (&)

ERFH & ) ¥ F8 R Y F ©6,454,0007% 7T (2009
13,274,000 0) Bt AKWBRERZHE X

included in the income statement. o
(b) Company (b) ZAA2ATF
Leasehold Motor Furniture and
improvements vehicles fixtures Total
HENEHES B GRREE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT Tt THT THBIT
At 1 January 2009 R2009F 1518
Cost A 220 1,310 199 1,729
Accumulated depreciation 2:tinE (109) (926) (107) (1,142)
Net book amount RHFE 111 384 9 587
Year ended 31 December 2009 HZ2009F12A31H
HEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 11 384 92 587
Additions NE - - 6 6
Depreciation charge HTERY (111) (238) (42) (391)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE - 146 56 202
At 31 December 2009 20095128318
Cost A 220 1,310 204 1,734
Accumulated depreciation Z:E (220) (1,164) (148) (1,532)
Net book amount RHFE = 146 56 202
Year ended 31 December 2010 220105128318
HEE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE - 146 56 202
Additions NE - - 50 50
Disposals HE - (38) - (38)
Depreciation charge HTERY = (78) (31) (109)
Closing net book amount ERKEFE - 30 75 105
At 31 December 2010 2010124311
Cost XA 220 1,176 250 1,646
Accumulated depreciation ZHFE (220) (1,146) (175) (1,541)
Net book amount RHFE - 30 75 105
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP 17. BELEE — ~KH
Computer
software
EKE G
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2009 7200951818
Cost %N 53,535
Accumulated amortisation g3 (35,040)
Net book amount REFE 18,495
Year ended 31 December 2009 HZE2009F12831HLEEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 18,495
Exchange differences B ZER 24
Additions NE 3,524
Disposals HE (121)
Amortisation B (8,006)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKBAR (9,932)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 3,984
At 31 December 2009 #2009%12831H
Cost A 17,702
Accumulated amortisation G 5 (13,718)
Net book amount REFE 3,984
Year ended 31 December 2010 HZ20105128318 L EE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 3,984
Exchange differences fE X =5 134
Additions NE 6,384
Amortisation B (6,547)
Closing net book amount FAREKEFE 3,955
At 31 December 2010 #2010612831H
Cost [HEN 24,850
Accumulated amortisation 25T (20,895)
Net book amount REFE 3,955
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. MIBARKRE — A1 H
— COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
2010%12H31H 2009412 A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
Investments — unlisted equity interests, & — JEETRERE -

at cost BN ANE 553,280 553,280
Amounts due from subsidiaries A EENGIE ] 11,700 11,700
564,980 564,980
Less: provision for impairment B BB - -
564,980 564,980
(a)  The particulars of the principal subsidiary at 31 (a) EZEHEARN2010F &2009F12 A31

December 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Place of

Principal place of

HZ=BsmT

Particulars of
registered and

establishment and operation and paid-in capital
Name type of legal entity activities EfREK Interest held
75 Bt R ARME TEREMBRER ERZFHE FrisfEs
Huada Electronics PRC, limited liability PRC, design, research and RMB50,000,000 100%
ERET company development and sale AER#50,000,0007T (Directly)
e - BRETAR of integrated circuits (BE#)

PR - ERER A

T RIHE

(b)  The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,

(b)

interest-free and with no fixed term of repayment.

FEUP B R B RIRY R EEE - 28
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(c)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
— COMPANY (Cont’d)

Disposal of investments in subsidiaries in 2009

On 29 December 2009, the Group disposed of Sang
Fei (BVI) Company Limited (“Sang Fei (BVI)”) at a
consideration of HK$10,000,000. Sang Fei (BVI)'s principal
asset is the holding of 65% equity interest in Shenzhen
Sang Fei Consumer Communications Company Ltd. (“Sang
Fei”). Details of the gain and net cash outflow on disposal
of Sang Fei (BVI) and its subsidiaries are as follows:

18. MBARKRE —FnFH (H)

() M2009FHEZHBLARRE

2009128298 - REE LA E108 B A
Tt E&Sang Fei (BVI) Company Limited ([ &3
(BVI)]) e &3E (BVI) 2 X BEEAFHXIIF
FBHBREERART ([FIE]) 65% Az -
HEZRFEBVI)RENB AR 2 Wi MR &R H
FREFEBWT

HK$'000
FAETT
Net liabilities disposed of: FIHEZFRIE

Property, plant and equipment M - BREREE (28,493)
Intangible assets mEEE (9,932)
Deferred taxation assets EETHIEE (64,374)
Inventories FE (349,045)
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M ERGIR (436,743)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss IR AR ERIERTIE S REE (4,109)
Restricted bank deposits R HIRITER (52,327)
Cash and cash equivalents Re RAEEEY (219,487)
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAER IR 657,716
Short term bank loans RHEBIRTTEK 521,580
Provision for warranty RABE 25,429
40,215
Release of translation reserve BEEEDE U R 29,653
Sale consideration less transaction costs HEHERRZ ZKA 7,292
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries I E B A A2 Was 77,160

Net cash outflow from disposal: HE 2B
Cash consideration received less transaction costs B Ut3R & BRI SRR 3,424
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHZReRBESEED (219,487)

(216,063)
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19. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. REtE QAT 2R
Group
REE
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
20105%12H31H 200912 A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Share of net assets of an associate S(LEE S N R EEEE 523 741
The particulars of the associate at 31 December 2010 and & N B 20104 K2009F 12 A31H 218
2009 are as follows: R
Place of Particulars of
establishment and Principal place of registered and
type of legal entity operation and paid-in capital
Name RS 3 B activities TMREW Interest held
£ ARMHE FEREMBRER ERZFHE FrisfEss
Guangdong Huada PRC, limited liability PRC, design and sale of RMB3,000,000 20%
Electronic Design company integrated circuits AR #3,000,0007T
Co., Ltd. FE - BREEAF PR EKERZ
BRERNENER BETRIHE
FETBREEAT

The following details have been extracted from the T EREE RSB 2 BE QAR ERE -

financial statements of the Group’s associate:

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A3MALLEE
2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Revenue N 109,350 55,446
(Loss)/Profit for the year RFEE (B1E), &5 (1,137) 1,230
Group’s share of (loss)/profit of REEDHBE N R ANEE
the associate for the year (B518),/ & F (227) 246
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19. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

19. RBEQT 2EH (&)

31 December 31 December
2010 2009
2010%12H31H 20094 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total assets BEMBRE 60,848 31,196
Total liabilities BfERHE (58,233) (27,490)
Net assets BEFE 2,615 3,706
Group's share of net assets of the associate & B o (L= N5 & EFE 523 741

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets represent unlisted equity
interest in companies established in the PRC and are
measured at costs less impairment at balance sheet date.

21. INVENTORIES - GROUP

20. AIHHESREE

AHHESREERAETEKIL 2F LT AR
EVARHE - N EE B AR R EREE -

21. FE — F&H

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

2010F12A31H 20094 12H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Work in progress ERR 63,080 37,947
Finished goods RUpK 198,232 46,663
261,312 84,610

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$351,371,000 (2009:
HK$283,755,000) for continuing operations.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$1,257,406,000 for
discontinued operation for the year ended 31 December
20009.

Provision for inventories of HK$8,216,000 (2009:
HK$1,808,000) has been charged to cost of sales.

BRERAI U ABELE ZEKEHEKK
Z 17 & B A A351,371,000/# JT (20094 :
283,755,000/ 7T) ©

HE2009F12A31HItFEER AR Wt
ABRIEEEZEBHEXNAZTFEXREE
1,257,406,000/ 7T °

A818,216,0005 7T (20094F : 1,808,000/ 7T)
ZHFEBREEFTABEEKA
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. EFREMERIRIE

Group Company
PN | AAT
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
2010128318 20094 12A318 20105128318 2009F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT FAET AT FAET
Trade receivables (Note (3)) B SRR (Hita) 268,312 198,158 S -
Less: provision for impairment R ERE
(Note (c)) (H172(c) (4,692) (3,075) = =
Trade receivables — net B SRR — F8 263,620 195,083 = -
Other receivables from related HiEW@EEA -
parties (Note 31) OB (KE31) - 5,000 - 5,000
Prepayments and deposits BNRERRZE 7,871 1,084 523 149
Value-added tax refundable A[RiE 7 ER 6,289 - - -
Other receivables Hh el zIE 2,678 7,342 261 502
280,458 208,509 784 5,651

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the carrying
of trade and other receivables of the Group
Company approximate their fair values.

amounts
and the

All trade and other receivables were due within 1 year,
non interest-bearing and unsecured. Included in the
balance of trade receivables are trade receivables from
related parties of HK$20,118,000 (2009: HK$58,740,000)

(Note 31).

MR2010F 200912 A31H » KEERKAR
AIZESREMEBEBWGRE EMEEREIAR
HBE -

FrEES NEMERRBEHNR —FREIE - I
RAEFEREERR - ;T AB ZFRBGIBLEHR
ZEWEEALTE SHHIAEAF20,118,000/8 T
(20094 : 58,740,000/ 7T) (MI5E31) °
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ESRHMEBWRKE &)
(Cont’d)
Trade and other receivables of the Group at 31 December AREBER2010F KX2009F12A31BZ2E S K
2010 and 2009 are denominated in the following HMERFIBREEE AT
currencies:
Group Company
r&EE b UNG|
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
2010F12H318 2009412A31H 20105128318 2009412 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT T THT
Renminbi AR 279,708 203,179 198 486
HK dollar BIT 750 5,330 586 5,165
280,458 208,509 784 5,651
(@)  The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit (@) AEEBEZHEHERBH2EEEHAIOEE
terms of 30 days to 135 days. The remaining 1358 - AHRHERERINEEE - R
amounts are due immediately after the delivery of 2010F12A31H  E5 R RFIBHEE 2
goods. At 31 December 2010, the ageing analysis FRER DM -

of the gross trade receivables are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

2010%12A31H 20099 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current to 30 days 30HA 113,678 116,021
31-60 days 31HZE60H 56,515 21,422
Over 60 days and within 1 year 60B A ERI1FR 92,936 54,614
Over 1 year 1€ 5,183 6,101

268,312 198,158
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

(b) The trade receivables which were past due but
not impaired amounted to HK$31,964,000 at 31
December 2010 (2009: HK$50,061,000). These
related to a number of customers with high
reputation for whom there is no recent history
of default, the ageing analysis of these trade
receivables are as follows:

22.

EZREMBWRIE (&)

M2010%12A31H » 2 # B8 I £ 3
B2 ¥ 5 EWKRIE AE31,964,000/% T
(20094 : 50,061,000/87C) ° LLEE 5
JiE Uk SR T8 Th B I e 3T AR T 4B HE X FRIE AT
B EERIEFEBR  HERS A
—|T:

31 December 31 December
2010 2009
2010%F12H31H 2009412 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET THETT
31-60 days 31HZE60H 9,518 14,349
Over 60 days and within 1 year 60R LA ER1FA 21,955 32,765
Over 1 year 1FLA E 491 2,947
31,964 50,061
The other classes within trade and other receivables B 5 K H fih fE U 2R I8 A 2 H 4t 8 Bl I 4
do not contain impaired assets. BEREEE °
(0 Movements in the provision for impairment on the () AEBEZEWFERERE ZZEWN
Group'’s trade receivables are as follows: ™
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
20105%12H31H 2009412 A31H
HK$"000 HK$'000
THET FETT
Beginning of the year F1) 3,075 1,719
Provision for impairment TR E B 1,476 19,931
Bad debts written off 1= BRI 5 = (281)
Exchange difference PE 5 =58 141 35
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKT B AT - (18,329)
End of the year FER 4,692 3,075
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. RERREEEY
Group Company
REE ARAFE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
20105128318 2009 12A31H 20105128318 2009F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT TERT FAT
Cash He
At bank and on hand RGBT RRE 36,217 139,539 4,435 23,368
Short term deposits 2R
At bank RITHETE 137,053 256,368 125,518 181,546
At other financial institution H {0 B IS Heg 77
- A related party (Note 31) —BEAL (BiE31) 94,015 1,513 70,511 —
231,068 257,881 196,029 181,546
267,285 397,420 200,464 204,914
The effective interest rate on short term deposits at 31 R2010F12A31H - BRHGERCERFERNE A
December 2010 was 1.07% (2009: 0.92%) per annum. 1.07% (20094 : 0.92% ) o 201012 A 31
The maturity days of these deposits at 31 December 2010 H  ZEEFZ2HBEHA90ER °

were all within 90 days.

24. ISSUED EQUITY/SHARE CAPITAL 24, CRITRER KA

(@) Issued equity — Group

(a) CBRITEZ - A5H

Number of shares Issued equity
B E ERTHER
‘000 HK$'000
TR FHEIT
At 1 January 2009 200918 1H 1,477,240 728,323
Issue of consideration shares (iii) FITEEMRAD (i) 214,320 195,031
Transfer to reserve (Note 25(e)) ER S (H5725) - (34,183)
At 31 December 2009, 7A2009%F12H31H -
at 1 January 2010 and M2010F1818 K
at 31 December 2010 #2010%12H31H 1,691,560 889,171
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24,

(a)

(ii)

ISSUED EQUITY/SHARE CAPITAL
(Cont’d)

Issued equity — Group (Cont’d)

The number of shares reflect the Company'’s
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each issued and fully
paid.

On 10 December 2003, CEC, the Company,
the Company’s then holding company, Winsan
International Holdings Limited entered into a
sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Company acquired CEC's 65%
equity interest in Sang Fei (the “Acquisition”) and
the consideration was satisfied by the issuance
of the Company's 6,500,000,000 shares to CEC.
The Acquisition was completed on 24 September
2004 and has been accounted for as a reverse
acquisition. For accounting purpose, Sang Fei was
regarded as the acquirer while the Company and
its then subsidiaries were deemed to have been
acquired by Sang Fei. Accordingly, the amount
recognised as issued equity of the Group, which
consisted of share capital and share premium, has
been determined by adding to the issued equity
of Sang Fei immediately before the completion of
the Acquisition the cost of the acquisition of the
Company and its then subsidiaries.

24.

(a)

CRITER RBRAEK &)

BERiTHER - XK@ (&)

BRiDE B RBARFZREE0IEIT
ZEBITAHREBR -

R2003F12A108 ' FHEFEE K
NERARNREBAIZRAE Winsan
International Holdings Limited 2] —15
BEEW=Z - BEZHZE - AARWER
BEFEENRIFN65%M AR ([I
BEE]) FIPENEHEEEBRETA
/A 716,500,000,000f% f% 7 FH B E T+ 5
Bz AAZM - WIEEIBER200449A
248 5K WHBRIE—BRIE -t
FREMS RIEFHRIEWBA - MR
NAIRE SR B QR RWRERS
JEUEE - At - MRABAKE D BITHE
TR (BREAEBRNDRE) HIRE
BEWEEEEKNATRIFNES BEITEZEMN
WHEARG RAEERE 2B A A KA

MEE -
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24. ISSUED EQUITY/SHARE CAPITAL 2. CRITER RAE (#)
(Cont’d)

(a) Issued equity - Group (Cont’d) (a) CORTEDR - X&EH (Z)

@iy ~ Upon the completion of the acquisition of the (i) 720099 HOH W EEE K E F 2 #BARA
entirg quity interests of Huada Electronics (“Huada s ([ZERWE ) kg - ARFIEE
Acquisition”) on 9 September 2009, 508,000,000 FRR0IIB T Y EBRAERE YEAT T
shares were allotted and issued, credited as fully A& 2 AR 3 % 35774 608,000, 000f% 25 2
paid, to the then shareholders of Huada Electronics 815 (A BEB|ES 2 ) {/Eﬁj%ﬂafﬂxf .
as consideration shares at a price of HK$0.91 sy 48 % (8 5553 280 0003 7T - B AR 2
per share. The total consideration amounting to ”ljg/\f AéZﬁ“ ﬂlﬁ“"*ﬁﬁﬁkiﬁﬁzw
HK$553,280,000 was presented as an increase 5 ?,2009 5 D—@l}ﬁ /\ﬁi a .
in share capital of HK$6,080,000 and increase 2 M6'080\'00707%3\E£HX\177 /A {%\_i 1][]
in share premium of HK$547,200,000 in the 547,200,000/ 7T * BLEEHEEM S -
separate financial statements of the Company in RUrBE R 2 1T45 - Bl 5K 2393,680, 000
2009. For accounting purpose, the 393,680,000 KR B RE B &R %|%55ﬁFﬁLZ/\
shares issued to China Huada as part of the HEHERAEZYERABER LR
Huada Acquisition were presented as if they had Sz EEABERADRT  HiEl ﬂ%%
been issued at the previous balance sheet dates TN AREE LGS ERE 7 BHUNEH
presented using the principle of merger accounting B 34T RE25 18 N358,249, 00038 7T, o 1T
as prescr'lbed in HKAG 5, and the opening balance #4 T ~ 214,320,000 BE 7 44 % B > E 4
of the issued equity of the Group had been AT 7R 5 B B B 3 A RS
increased by HK$358,249,000 in the consolidated o= o~ 10 Y 2
financial statements of the Group. The remaining TT\EIJX%Z\)\EEH&EE e ?f‘

- S R A BN 2009F9HORE #1TH R
214,320,000 shares issued to the other then e —
shareholders of Huada Electronics were accounted $21n195,031,000/8 7T °
for as a transaction with non-controlling interests,
and the total consideration of HK$195,031,000 was
presented as an increase in the issued equity of the
Group on 9 September 2009.
(b)  Share capital - Company (b) BAE—-ZE&QTH
Number of shares - ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each
RO%E - BREEOIETZEER
Issued and
Authorised fully paid Share capital  Share premium Total
EE BRIRAR e Ry EE ait
‘000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAT TR TAT

At January 2009 7200951518 30,000,000 1,083,560 10,836 325,055 335,891

Issue of consideration shares (i) Z7T4HE R i) - 608,000 6,080 547,200 553,280

At 31 December 2009, 2009512A31A

at 1 January 2010 and ®201051R18 &
at 31 December 2010 #2010612A31R 30,000,000 1,691,560 16,916 872,255 889,171

95



96

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE2010F 128318 ILFE

25. OTHER RESERVES 25. Hftwf#E
Group RE
Share
option
Capital Surplus reserve Translation Merger Other
reserve reserve ERE reserve reserve reserve Total
EXfE ERHRE wE ELRE SORE HtRE &gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THT THT THT THT
Note (a) Note (b) Note (c) Note (d) Note (e)
Hiit(a) Kzt b) irz4(, Kzt Hizt(e)
At 1 January 2009 RW2009E181H (876) 49,634 7141 66,503  (327,605) - (205,203)
Issue of consideration shares 17BN = = = = - (134,832) (134,832
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR
(Sang Fei (BVI)) (Z3EB)) 1,806  (33,325) - (29,653) - 65,702 4,530
Share option lapsed BB - - (4,095) - - = (4,095)
Currency translation E¥BREEE
differences = - - (7,242) = = (7,242)
At 31 December 2009 #2009%12A31H 930 16,309 3,046 29,608  (327,605) (69,130)  (346,842)
At 1 January 2010 R2010F1H18 930 16,309 3,046 29,608  (327,605) (69,130)  (346,842)
Share option lapsed B RS - - (3,046) - = = (3,046)
Currency translation ERHREESE
differences - - - 8,517 - - 8,517
At 31 December 2010 72010%F12A31H 930 16,309 - 38,125  (327,605) (69,130)  (341,371)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

25. OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)
Group (Cont’d)

(a) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the exchange differences arising
from foreign currencies received for Sang Fei's paid-in
capital.

(b) Surplus reserve

According to the laws and regulations of the PRC and
enterprise’s articles of association, the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to provide for certain statutory
funds, namely, general reserve fund and enterprise
expansion fund, which are appropriated from profit after
taxation but before dividend distribution based on the
local statutory accounts prepared in accordance with
accounting principles and relevant financial regulations
applicable to enterprises established in the PRC. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to allocate at least 10% of its
profit after taxation to the reserve fund until the balance
of such fund has reached 50% of its registered capital.
Such appropriations are determined at the discretion
of the board of directors. The general reserve fund can
only be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to
offset accumulated deficit or increase capital. Enterprise
expansion fund can be used to expand production or to
increase capital.

25. HREE &)
AE® (£)

(a) EXRHE

BARERERIFRBIINEBWE AR EEZE
HER -

)

(b) ErfEfE

REBEFBOERERER UREEZRARER
AAREFE M BARATIRE TAEE
T PHA—REGESIEXERES B
BREZTFEAMERER <SR LM
AP BEEMABRZIBEREERBAE ZHRRER
BREFHEMR B 2K 2t A R 2 ER o 1t Fr o BT
BRRAREMRENZDI10%D BEE B
HEd BEEAMREESEREZHEAMELZ
50%/mLE e hERFHESEMNHEE - — &
RECEEERE B AR AT MIEEER
AAERREMER - PERBERESAIAREX
HEEKIENER ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZXE2010F 128318 ILFE

25. OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)
Group (Cont’d)

(d) Share option reserve

On 25 October 2005, 28,450,000 share options were
granted to certain directors, employees and other
participants at an exercise price of HK$1.488 under the
Share Option Scheme. 40% of the share options granted
were exercisable from 1 November 2005 to 31 October
2008, another 30% were exercisable from 1 November
2007 to 31 October 2009 and the remaining 30% were
exercisable from 1 November 2008 to 31 October 2010.
No share option was exercised during the year.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
are as follows:

25. HbfEE &)
AE® ()

() BERERE

2005 10H25H - ETES= - EEREM
L2 E B IFB T 212 28,450,00017 B %
W 1TEER1.488/8 7T - FTiR K 2 BERREH -
40%A] B2005%11 818 #£ £2008%F10A31H 1t
17{F - B4M30% A B2007411 818 £ E=2009
FI10A31BLETTE - MR T 230% 7] B2008F
1M B1H#£E2010F10A318 IE1TF - FARIL
EAE AR TTIE o

RARTTE 2 BEAERR B 2 Fa T

2010 2009

20104 20094

At 1 January R1A18 4,350,000 11,070,000
Lapsed BN (4,350,000) (6,720,000)
At 31 December ®12H31H - 4,350,000

Share options outstanding at 31 December 2009 expired
on 31 October 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, 4,350,000
share options lapsed and an amount of HK$3,046,000
was transferred from share option reserve to retained
earnings (2009: HK$4,095,000). At 31 December 2010,
the Company had no (2009: 4,350,000) share option
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

2009 12 A31 B ARTT{E 2 AR #E 2 JEm B
A20102E10H31H

RE E2010F12A831H L& E © 4,350,000%
BE RS A O Sk % 0 3,046,00078 7T H B8 A% A2 6 1%
2 (R % F (20094 : 4,095,000 7T) °
2010 12H318 © AN 2 7 I £ (20094 :
4,350,0001n ) EHERREFTEIA M RITHE 2B
7 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

25. OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)
Group (Cont’d)

(d) Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the fair
value of the consideration shares issued to China Huada
and the 64.75% of paid-in capital of Huada Electronics
acquired from China Huada under common control.

(e) Other reserve

The amount recognised in other reserve includes the
difference between the issued equity immediately before
the disposal of Sang Fei (BVI) and its subsidiaries and share
capital and share premium of the Company, plus other
reserve shared from Sang Fei upon the completion of the
disposal; and the difference between the fair value of
consideration shares issued to non-controlling interests of
Huada Electronics for the acquisition of their interest in
Huada Electronics and the Group’s share of the carrying
value of net assets of Huada Electronics acquired.

25. HtbfEE &)
AEM® (£E)

(d) EOHEE

BOfEBREERRERN TR TETEERHE
It 2 AR EEEES lﬁékhﬁZGéHS%i&
RETERERZERE -

(e) Hftf#f

HEEMHERETERZEERR/EERIFBVIL
HKTE A AR 2O BT S EAR AR MK
MBEEZEZRE  MEREETKEDERIEZ
HitfEt  REBBEREFIHEREEm
REMBETTERETIFRERMEER 2 HER
MZARBEEEEREMBBEAE T ZEE
FEEmMECER -

Company AAT]
Contributed Share option

surplus reserve Total
BHZR BIRERE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
At 1 January 2009 720091518 61,672 7,141 68,813
Share option lapsed B R = (4,095) (4,095)
At 31 December 2009 #2009%12A31H 61,672 3,046 64,718
At 1 January 2010 ®2010F1818 61,672 3,046 64,718
Share option lapsed BR BB - (3,046) (3,046)
At 31 December 2010 ®2010512A31H 61,672 - 61,672

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances as specified in section
54 thereof.

BEBEAREZEIGIFRARNE KRR ZEHAG
AR RZ GBI E54IKFTETRZ B TR AT DR T
A% ER o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE2010F 128318 ILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. EZRHEMENKE

Group Company
rEH b N
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
20105128318 20094128318 2010128318 2009F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET TEr FHT
Trade payables B2 REfNFIA 201,830 122,834 - -
Other payables from related parties £ 4 fE{+ Bi:E A L 3B
(Note 31) (Hi231) 6,668 44,512 - -
Accrued expenses BIRER 3,050 3,255 3,050 3,255
Salary and welfare payables JRE {1 8k T 5 B 53,065 40,499 2,386 1,285
Deferred government grants B THEB) 74,674 46,514 - -
Other taxes payables HAfE IR 616 18,203 6 -
Other payables H R zIE 21,952 29,929 10 -
361,855 305,746 5,452 4,540

At 31 December 2010, the ageing analysis of the Group’s
trade payables are as follows:

R2010F12A318 » XEBE FENFKIBEZE
BN -

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

2010%12H31H 20094F12 A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Current to 30 days 30HA 100,480 63,251
31 - 60 days 31HZ60H 20,836 8,473
Over 60 days 60H A £ 80,514 51,110
201,830 122,834

Included in the balance of trade payables are trade
payables to related parties amounted to HK$136,436,000
(2009: HK$113,148,000) (Note 31).

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the carrying amount
of trade and other payables of the Group and Company
approximate their fair values.

STABSENFIBELEGRAZENBEALTE SR
T8 /4136,436,00078 7T (20094F : 113,148,000/ 7T
(Bf3E31) ©

20104 K2009%F12A31H » AEEH AR
RIZESREMENREZEREEREAARE
M -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

27. SHORT TERM BANK LOANS - GROUP

27. BHRITER - F&H

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

2010%12H31H 20094 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT THET

Unsecured K R 23,504 22,715

The bank loans at 31 December 2010 were repayable
within one year and bear interest at the average borrowing
rate of 5.56% per annum (2009: 5.31%,).

The short term bank loans are all denominated in Renminbi
and its carrying amount approximate its fair value.

The Group has undrawn committed banking facilities
of HK$47,008,000 at 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$45,430,000).

R2010F 128318 @ RITERERN —FREER
Mz R EERN K5 56% (20094 : 5.31%)
e e

RHRITEFIUARRBE MEAKAESR
HERARERE -

R2010%F 128318 ZEB W AEBH 2 EEH
RITEEHE RS A47,008,000% 7T (20094 :
45,430,000/ 1) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE2010F 128318 ILFE

28. CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM 28. (FTR),/ EEXZzHE
OPERATIONS
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BRATS L ATREF(E51E)
— Continuing operations — BB 7 T 63,126 60,995
— Discontinued operation — BRI 7 TS - (15,819)
Adjustment for: R
Depreciation of property, Yz WE K
plant and equipment REITE 7,867 27,079
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EEH 6,547 8,006
Dividend received ISER AR B, = (227)
Interest received B FI &, (2,742) (4,334)
Interest paid XAFLE 1,109 32,294
Share of results of an associate DG E N R 2 EE 227 (246)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A A2 Was = (77,160)
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEVE  BERREZ
plant and equipment BB (E) 59 (243)
76,193 30,345
Changes in working capital EEESH
Inventories FE (176,702) 162,665
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M EWGRIE (71,949) (7,896)
Financial assets at fair value through BARERERYIRS
profit or loss TREE - (2,833)
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk HAER FRIE 61,537 61,351
Provision for warranty RAEE = (17,586)
Cash (used in)/ generated from operations &% (FrA), E42RE (110,921) 226,046
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

29. COMMITMENTS 29. FEiE
Operating lease commitments REHERIE

The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments REBRBIABRIBERBAETYE K

under non-cancellable operating leases for factories and LHEMARRKEZ Mz &EEERBAEN
office premises are as follows: N
Group Company
REH ¥iIN/N|
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
20104 20094 20104 20094
12H31H 12A31H 12H31H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT FET FETT
Not later than one year 1A 6,931 7,598 131 30
In the second to fifth years ~ F2FEEF5F R 4,333 9,847 - -
11,264 17,445 131 30
30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30, ZEEE
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities R2010F 128318 » AEB W ETREANSE
at 31 December 2010 (2009: nil). B & (20094 : &) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE2010F 128318 ILFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material transactions
with related parties during the year:

(a) Significant transactions with companies under
common control of CEC

31. BEALRZRAER

BRAGEMBHRREMENEHKENRSG R
RERON > RAFEARSEEBEALTETY
THBRREARS :

(a) EZHEHEFEEHEEZEHZIATZE
AR S

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HILLEE
2010 2009
20104 20094F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(i) Continuing operations: (i) FERE %K .
Sale of products HEEm 54,397 39,214
Purchase of goods and services KRB E MmN AR 347,767 236,101
Interest received I BRI B 105 73
Rental paid e - 1,182
(ii) Discontinued operation: (i) ORI K 2 #£5
Sale of products, samples HEEm - &
and raw materials KB - 196,971
Purchase of raw materials s AR = 43,143
Processing services received B2 INT AR - 3,993
Canteen services received BEXRERE - 7,784
After sales and maintenance BEXEE
services received HAEIRTE = 7,429
Rental paid xfEE - 12,222
Comprehensive services received B 2HERE - 16,573
Interest paid ATFLE - 3,444
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z%2010F 12831 HIEFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (Cont'd)

(b) Significant balances with companies under

31. MEALRZ K& (8)

(b) RETEBFEMARRHZANZE

common control of CEC N 453
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
20105%12831H 2009412 A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAETT
Trade receivables = e Q] 6,742 40,136
Other receivables H b fE W RIR - 5,000
Deposits T 94,015 1,513
Trade payables 2 S ENFIR 136,436 113,148
Other payables H {th FE - FKIB 3,526 44,512

(c) Transactions and balances with an associate

() HBEQRTZXZRER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALLEE
2010 2009
2010 20094F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Sale of products HEEm 30,364 3,190
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
2010512H31H 2009412 A31H
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET T
Trade receivables =) e Q] 13,376 10,498
Other payables H A e IR 3,142 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE2010F 128318 ILFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 31.

BALANCES (Cont'd)

(d) Transactions and balance with a company that (d)
certain key management of the Group have

significant influence

BEALRZRER (&)

HASEZIEEBEABHENEAY
B RAZRBRER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HILLEE
2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
Sale of products SHEEm - 4,120
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
2010F12H31H 200912 A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Trade receivables B 5 R IGRIE = 8,106
() Key management compensation (e) TEEEAEMS

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31ALEE
2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2L REYET 3,209 3,421
Contributions to retirement schemes BRIRGHEIE R 105 99
3,314 3,520




Set out below is a summary of the financial information of
the Group for the last five years.

B EFEEERARAR

2010 &5

Five-year Financial Summary

IFEMBERREE

ATNBAEEBEREMBRFEVBEERBE -

RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 December
EZ12A31BLLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
20105 20094 20084 20074F 20064F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAT FET FAET TAT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E71) (E71) (E51)
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RER) (E=%) (8|z) (REER) (REER)
v, (i) (1)
Continuing operations BELE ¥
Revenue WA 574,586 460,533 621,805 652,767 508,717
Profit before BR TS Fi AN
income tax il 63,126 60,995 121,571 131,873 123,921
Income tax expense FrEHRA< (3,185) 7,171) (16,997) (4,756) (8,690)
Profit for the year from FERE ¥
continuing operations INE FE 55 A 59,941 53,824 104,574 127,117 115,231
(Loss)/Profit for the year from B HES Y %>
discontinued operation AEE (B8),/ &Fl - (15,819) (324,068) 12,713 73,954
Profit/(Loss) for the year REZRF /(FB) 59,941 38,005 (219,494) 139,830 189,185
Attributable to : BEERN
Shareholders of the Company AR &IRE 59,941 41,072 (146,327) 90,505 120,993
Non-controlling interests FEPR IR RS - (3,067) (73,167) 49,325 68,192
59,941 38,005 (219,494) 139,830 189,185
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EFEHMEERBE @)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
31 December
12A31R

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
20104 2009F 20084 20074 20065
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET THET FHBT FAET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(83)) (Z51) (831))
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RER) (&%) (&E&R) (REBER) (REBEXR)
() (i) (1)
Total assets BEEH 858,146 732,790 2,001,367 2,432,284 1,897,495
Total liabilities BfEEHE (385,359) (328,461)  (1,445,066)  (1,528,812)  (1,091,787)
Non-controlling interests R MR - - (117,226) (235,745) (210,181)
472,787 404,329 439,075 667,727 595,527

The financial summary for the year ended 31 December 2006,
2007 and 2008 are restated using the principles of merger
accounting as prescribed in HKAG 5, details of which are set
out in Note 2.1 of the consolidated financial statements for

the year ended 31 December 2009.

H Z20064F ~ 20074 2200812 A31H L FE
2B ERBE AR B ETIE3| E5H TR
EZEMEsARRES - BREFIFEER 2009
F12A3NBIEFEZRE T HREAMF2.1R -
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